

117

NDHLOVU

KA

TIMUNI

- ✓ 1. 7. 11. 1902 70/32-34 } ✓ ✓
- ✓ 2. 8. 11. 1902 70/34-5 } ✓ ✓
- ✓ 3. 8. 11. 1902 71/76-7 ✓ ✓
- ✓ 4. 9. 11. 1902 70/35-42 ✓ ✓
- ✓ 5. 9. 11. 1902 71/77-9 ✓ ✓
- ✓ 6. 10. 11. 1902 (ev. given 9. 11. 1902) plus rough notes 60/10/13-18 } 71/79-81. ✓ ✓
- ✓ 6A. 1. 1. 1903 60/11/1-4 ✓ ✓
- ✓ 7. 2. 1. 1903 71/81-2 ✓ ✓
- ✓ 8. 11. 1. 1903 70/48-53 } ✓ ✓
- ✓ 9. 19. 1. 1903 (ev. given 11. 1. 1903) 20/53-54 } ✓ ✓
- ✓ 10. 22. 3. 1903 plus rough notes, 60/11/15-24 + 60/12/1-6 } ✓ ✓
- ✓ 10. 22. 3. 1903 60/17/13-14 ✓ ✓
- ✓ 11. 9. 5. 1903 60/21/9 ~~19~~ ✓ ?
- ✓ 12. 2. 9. 19 - 20. 9. 1919 57/10/11-48 ✓ (in Zulu) ✓
- ✓ 13. 20. 9. 1919 57/9/1-6 (in Zulu)
- 14. 25. 4. 1920 57/10/49 (sheet attached - get copy made in KC+L)

of Myandeya's cattle. Sir M. O then told Sitimela that he was going on to the Nhlazatshe and that he wanted to speak to him there in the presence of Myandeya who would be sent for. S. then went away. Sir M. O then despatched Nukwana with a letter to John Dunn. Such was evidently to summon Dunn for he went to see Sir M. O. and no sooner did D. get back than an attack was made by Myandeya (assisted by Dunn and other Europeans who fired guns) on Sitimela then at his new large kraal, called after Dingiswayo's famous kraal, — Oyengweni but also with the further significant name of Pixadumbone. Myandeya was completely successful, no sooner did the assailants advance on the kraal and the Europeans open fire, than the inmates turned and fled towards the Mfolozi, a number being slain. The kraal was burnt. Sitimela himself escaped. Toyana (Tolana) a policeman of mine at Ingwavuma was an adherent of Sitimela's at the time & he was one of those who fled. Mtateni, the present Chief in ^{the} Mfolozi Dist, was also an adherent of Sitimela. It is not known where S. ran off to but it is believed he is in Natal as he was last heard of there. N. adds that he was a tall, dark man, an insizwa, spoke unfortunately in the Tonga tongue, would be about the age of Mbonambi regt^r or Nokenke, when he saw Sir M. O he had on a leopard skin beshu with large imponso ye miti sticking out around his neck. On the occasion of his second coming he was about 2 months in the country before he was routed. Spoke of Myandeya as 'father'. Myandeya died some time before Cetshwayo. After the rout Myandeya resumed occupation of his old land. N. says that though speaking a foreign dialect S. was beginning to assume the appearance of a chief or man of rank. It was due to European action (through Sir M. O) that he was turned out, in former times the man having come back as he did & would have come to stay. Mqobo and Cakijana are two sons of Dingiswayo N. knows off, both however are now dead. They did not fly north like Somveli.

7.11.1902

7.11.02

117
File 70, pp. 32-42 70/32-42
The conversation with Nhlove ka Timuni ka Mudhli. This man called on me today with another, being referred to me by my old friend Mkhando. He is about 43-45 years of age, has beading, & is a Chief at Mapumulo. His tribe is the Zulu one, & Nukwana says, belongs to the Kohlo side of the Royal House of Zululand.

Mbulawa was present during my $\frac{3}{4}$ hr chat, Mbulwana being obliged to remain at home as I am moving to another house (Norfolk Villas, Musgrave Road)

Nkhlovu gave in detail the history of Nandi becoming enceinte & re birth of Tshaka. When it was found she was pregnant, she said she was suffering from itohati or ikambi (a particular ailment). Mudhli, Nkhlovu's grandfather, secreted her. In those days kings had no sons (all were killed off); consequently, when Nandi was found out to be pregnant, an unipi was sent to kill her & the child, but, ~~an intum~~ warning being received beforehand, Nandi & her child escaped. It was not commonly known the child had been born, the child itself was handed over to its grandmother to bring up so as to allow Nandi's breasts to 'dry' as soon as possible. After a while Tshaka went to Dingiswayo. He remained there more or less incognito. Senzangakona went to Dingiswayo on the pretext of ^{courting gifts} gonisain but really to find out where Tshaka was. Nkhlovu described how Tshaka was ^{doctored} slapped by Dingiswayo; ^{how he ~~slapped~~ 'doctored'} his assegai; how when Senzangakona had taken his seat in a hut a number of men followed came in, followed by young Tshaka who, by pre-arrangement with Dingiswayo, deliberately stood over his father, cast casting his shadow over him & completely covering him with it; how Senzangakona began to tremble, feeling that the man who did this was his son; how he departed, became ill and died after 4 of his greater men had come by their deaths at Tshaka's hands. It was Mudhli who ~~took~~ brought word to Dingiswayo that Senzangakona, ^{coming to ~~space~~ court the girl} came really to find Tshaka out [But see pp. 35-41]

Nkhlovu referred to Mpande having taken Monase to wife on behalf of Tshaka who had had no children. By Monase Mpande bore Mbuyazi & Mkungo, whilst Mtonga was said to be a matbrarer (udibi). Mbulwana later on explained to me that Mbuyazi was Mpande's rightful successor, and that Mpande loved Mbuyazi deeply & hated Letshwayo. The latter, Mpande said, was his heir whilst he was an umuntuzi, i.e. a commoner, whilst Mbuyazi was the proper heir as he was Tshaka's heir, the man who knit the country together. Mbuyazi was very tall, Mbulwana thinks 6.4 or 6.5 ^{feet with fat ends} or more! When the Nondakusuka battle took place he belonged to the Zulwana regt and had not ^{put in the head ring} tungu's. He had a large ^{mess of hair} isihlute & was known as ^{The elephant} indhloni & esi hlonti; i.e. hair (wool) low down on the back. His eye lids & were very meaty, fleshy - of a lightish coloured skin.

Nkhlovu said Dingana was not killed by Swazis but ^{by} his own troops.

The troops were afraid of saying they had done so for fear lest they would be blamed, as Mhlanguana was in regard to Tshaka's death.

Mhlouva gave as an instance of the Zulus coming from the north: "wa bek' isigongo-gono sinja, esi hlohlohe nge nge zint' egolo, ngenq' amaMtingwa pezulu." The words, of the common saying, underlined tend to show the Zulus came from the north. (The word "those" is not correct. v. p. 35.) (Timuni belonged to the Ntabenkule section of the iZimpohlo regiment. Mhlouva often asked his father to tell him stories of the past.)

Mdikwana, this afternoon, gave a long account of Mpande's relations between Cetshwayo & Mbuyazi. The latter had been practically nominated King. He received immediately after the king, received the isi-hlanga or nseba, whilst Cetshwayo got the other etc. It seems Mbuyazi was given what is now Eshowe and Mlalazi districts to occupy. Mapita & Mnyamana supported Cetshwayo, & when Mbuyazi went to build, as told ^{by Mpande} he might do, ~~but~~ Mapita advised immediate attack. Mpande sent Ntshingwayo ka Marole to tell Mbuyazi to take refuge in Natal. Mbuyazi might have done this, & would probably have done so, but for the influence of Mantantashiya. Tshonkwani resisted Mantantashiya but the latter's counsels prevailed. Had he desired to escape, Mbuyazi might have done so by the lower Tugela drift, but Mantantashiya called him a cur to leave, seeing only the Usuteo people would fight, whereas, as it turned out, the whole Zulu people took up arms against the iZigqoza. Mantantashiya was killed. Ntshingwayo was intercepted before he could deliver Mpande's message.

Mpande also ^{with large power} ~~gave~~ Zulu's Dingana and Nzibe. Tshonkwani became the heir of the former.

There was an ifala ^{innyanga} ~~ne mlingo~~, called Membe, attached to Mpande's court who played a part in these stirring times.

It is not unusual in Zululand for a younger brother to take a wife & declare the ^{Son} ~~heir~~ by her to be the heir of his elder brother who died without issue, but such practice of ten gave rise to serious quarrels.

Note. Mhlouva ka Timuni arrives with 2 or 3 followers, & stays the night. I had a lengthy conversation with him this afternoon about 3 1/2 hrs.

8-11-02 Saturday
New post: Bhime, other (Tshonkwani) Fil 70, pp. 34-5.
Bunce + other

Says his father Timuni laid stress on the following doggerel as showing the source of the Zulu people: "Ua, bek' isigongono se'nja, si hlonywe nge nduku ya matlungwa, beka ^{poohly pronounced} (perzulee)". The word perzulee ^{was} taken by Timuni to be the name of the ancient ancestor of the Zulu people, Perzulee being the father of Lebololwenja ^(The name might be Bekaperzulee). This, however, seems doubtful to me, for Lebololwenja is an isibongo and not a proper name & out of respect, the Zulus are known as a ba kwa sibong'esihle. But for the stress laid on the above words in Zulu by Ndhlovu, I would not have gone into the matter. Ndhlovu's grandfather, was the son of Nkwelo, who was a son of Ndaba, the Zulu king or chief. Senzangakona was a son of Jama ka Ndaba, and so Ndhlovu comes to be a near relation of the Royal House. I find his sympathies are on the side of Inkungo. Ndhlovu's son is named Zibebe. The kinglet Zulu was son of Mombela or Malandla, and Qwabe was his brother.

Ndhlovu suggests the following men as likely to be of assistance to me: Magqwana ka Inbesa, Jantshi ka Nongila ^(a son of) (Mhloli ka Senzangakona), Mruyi (Ndhlovu's brother), Mtshololo ^(sickly) and Jiyana wakwa Nzuza ^(also Matshegile ka Mgoye ka) Sotobe, who wela'd to see the white people by direction of Tshaka, was the son of Dangalala.

A man able to speak in assembly and suggest solutions to difficult issues was the late Ncapayi, living near Verulam. Ndhlovu considers the man's ability in that respect was conspicuous.

BRING IN 71/76-877

Had further conversations today (9.11.02). Here follows the story relating about Tshaka's birth &c, told by Ndhlovu. ^(Ndhlovu, Bunu & another, also Ndjukwana present)

When Senzangakona was a boy he was in the habit of herding cattle with other boys and to do so properly amadhlangala were erected for his temporary use. These rough shelters were a short distance from his home. In the neighbourhood of the Zulu tribe ^{was} the Langeni ^{one} tribe, of which ^{a girl named} Nandi ~~the future mother of Tshaka~~ was a member. She was the daughter of Mbenge. It may here be stated that ~~as~~ a generation or so before a girl had left the Mteto tribe to marry a man in the Qwabe ^{one} tribe. A daughter of this pair went and married Mbenge of the a ba se Langeni tribe. Nandi, the subject of our story, was the daughter born of this union. Having an inclination to see and to marry Senzangakona, King of the

To.
8.11.02
Salary day

Feb 7 11 76-77
71/76-82

Conversation with Nkhlovu ka Timuni
(wa ^{ba} kwaka Zulu)

Part of our conversations today + yesterday have been recorded in my note book marked History of Zululand &c under yesterday + today's date. Nkhlovu was present when I had a 3 1/2 hrs chat on the Native Question in its general aspect. There were also 2 other natives, accompanying Nkhlovu. Nkhlovu is a bright young man of about 45, medium height, light coloured, talkative, agreeable, intelligent, with a keen interest in larger questions. He is a chief in Mapumulo Div. Frequently conversed with his father Timuni as to the far-off past. Timuni said that before he expired, Ishaka uttered words to the effect that "even though he had been treated in that way (killed), he was glad they would meet ^{his friends} the white men; the country would now qekhe' izinkanyeri and swallows would fly about." What Ishaka said has come true.

Nkhlovu says everyone would hail with delight the holding of native public meetings in P. M. Burg from time to time. That is what is truly needed. He was of opinion ^{the} the last generation had failed ^{in not} educating native children. ^{He} Considers ^{the} Kolwa & others are corrupted by new-comers from England & elsewhere who know nothing of the native. It is not mere education that alienates young men &c. But he was prepared to retract these words when I advocated the governing in accordance with old laws & customs. ^{He} Approves the policy of 'repression'.

Told him of the comparatively recent possibility of crossing large seas, of the Spaniards coming in conflict with the Incas in Peru, of the comparatively recent period within which the European has come into contact with coloured & other races &c.

He says people feel ^{used as} the laws as a great burden ^{unable to find the means of} meeting the various calls on them by the Govt. &c. ^{Do not understand our laws. To see a reasonable way} Cannot ^{think of any} understand where our King is seeing he does not use his influence + ameliorate their condition.

He went to Tongaland (Ngwanaza's & Ngonyameni kraal) about 15 to 18 years ago to buy ^{great things for} izisimba.

I read over the ^{names} izibongo I have of Zwibe, Senyangakona, Ishaka, Dingana, Mpande, Cetshwayo, Mapita, Mzilikazi + Dingiswayo, and ^{read} told them my lists.

of Kings + Regiments, all of which surprized + pleased them. My Dingana's ^{size} ~~size~~ -tongos (taken from Colenso's Grammar, First Steps in Zulu +) are mixed up with Mpande's.

He generally approves Sir J. S's policy. ⁽²⁶⁴⁾ Jimuni considered Sir J. S. had on the whole deceived the people, for he told them it would all come right + the time would come when they would laugh.

9.11.02. Sunday. ^{today} Further conversation: Nkhlovu, with Bunu + other, his followers, present also Mukuwana. -

Nkhlovu started by saying he had considered my remarks of yesterday about the Natives being allowed to have their own Parliament and be permitted to manage themselves according to their own laws and customs. He said the present state of affairs has turned them into mice (penduki'amagundane). If such a policy of allowing them to manage their own affairs were conceded the people would be able to bear any burden however great it might be, seeing that they would then have a full knowledge of what they were doing. Things have greatly altered from what they used to be. Take as an illustration the turning out to work on the Road Parties. In the former days boys used to look forward to such work, wondering when their turn would come. As soon as there was a demand for ^{such} labour ~~the~~ boys would be found on the look out (si ya vel' u se eingile, u ya si hlazela) but nowadays boys detest the work and do everything to escape it, run away to towns &c. Formerly men of note were known by the European authorities and treated accordingly, now every one is on a par with others and all are nobodies. Men should not continue to be izigubee (dummies) and not be allowed to pendula. Natives have become izamukuu (mutes), we cannot make ourselves heard. When cases are tried natives do not understand our procedure. The Magistrate says, "Have you anything to say? Do you wish to give your evidence on oath or to make a statement &c?" but the man addressed is puzzled and does not know what to say whereas if native custom had been followed he would have been able to present a better defence.

Jimuni left Zululand in Dingana's time with his elder brother Siquobana because they were to be killed. Although practically independent in Natal Jimuni was afraid of holding the mkosi (qub' mkosi) as this would create the impression he was a king when the Zulu people would attack him.

Says his father Timuni laid stress on the following doggerel, as showing the source of the Zulu people: "Ua bek' isigongono se' nja, si hlonywe nge nduku ya maktungwa, beka pezulee". The word pezulee ^{was} taken by Timuni to be the name of the ancient ancestor of the Zulu people, Pezulee being the father of Lebololwanga. ^(The name might be Bekapezulee) This, however, seems doubtful to me, for Lebololwanga is an isibongo and not a proper name & out of respect, the Zulus are known as 'a ba kura sibong'esihle'. But for the stress laid on the above words in Zulu by Mhlovu I would not have gone into the matter. Mudhli, Mhlovu's grandfather, was the son of Mkwelo who was a son of Ndaba the Zulu king or chief. Senzangakona was son of Jama ka Ndaba, and so Mhlovu comes to be a near relation of the Royal House. I find his sympathies are on the side of Inkungo. Mhlovu's son is named Zibebe. The kinglet Zulu was son of Mombela or Malandela and Qwabe was his brother.

Mhlovu suggests the following men as likely to be of assistance to me: Magqwana ka Mbera, Jantshe ka Nongila (Mhlovi ka Senzangakona), Mruyi (Mhlovu's brother), Mtshololo ^(sickly) and Jiyana wakwa Nzuza ^(also Mtshigile ka Mqoko ka Dngicwayi). Sotobe, who wela'd to see the white people by direction of Ishaka, was the son of Dingalala.

A man able to speak in assembly and suggest solutions to difficult issues was the late Ncapayi living near Verulam. Mhlovu considers the man's ability in that respect was conspicuous.

9-11-1902 (PRINTING IN 11/10-1902) ^{70/35-42}
 Had further conversations today (9-11-02). Here follows the story relating about Ishaka's birth &c, told by Mhlovu.
 (Nkhlova, Bunu + another, also Nkhukwana present)

When Senzangakona was a boy he was in the habit of herding cattle with other boys, and to do so properly amadhlangala were erected for his temporary use. These rough shelters were a short distance from his home. In the neighbourhood of the Zulu tribe ^{was} the Langeni ^{one} tribe of which ^{a girl named} Nandi the ~~future mother~~ of Ishaka was a member. She was the daughter of Mbenge. It may here be stated that ~~as~~ a generation or so before, a girl had left the Mtewa tribe to marry a man in the Qwabe ^{one} tribe, and a daughter of this pair went and married Mbenge of the a ba se Langeni tribe. Nandi, the subject of our story, was the daughter born of this union. Having an inclination to see and to marry Senzangakona, King of the

Zulu people, Nandi, who not only had the approval, but active assistance of her relatives, arranged to go out from time to time to a particular spot behind some bushes where, unseen, she, with her companions, could watch the royal youth Senzangakona. Accompanied by ~~several~~ men and girls she proceeded on several occasions to this spot, which was close to Senzangakona's amathlangata, and beheld at a distance the object of her choice, ^{at a distance} being afraid from maiden modesty of making any nearer approach. Her male relatives too felt unable to convey her into the young man's immediate view. ^{Reports} To this spot those frequenting it carried beer and meat. After a little time one of the boys heading with Senzangakona discovered the spot in question, a short examination of ^{it} ~~which~~ confirmed him in the belief that some persons made a habit of visiting it. There were, for instance, bones about, ~~the~~ the grass had been worn away, & the place smelt of peent (umuteva or amaka). Surprized at what he had seen, the discoverer reported the fact to Senzangakona, when it was decided to watch and see what people went there. Once more the little party came and took up its position. ^{Several} of Senzangakona's young men went to find out who they were. They greeted the strangers, and on inquiring their business, were told that Nandi had come to see Senzangakona ^(because she liked him.) "But do you know him?" they asked, "Yes," she replied. Reporting to Senzangakona what had transpired, the latter proceeded to the spot and met Nandi, who, by this time, had been deserted by her men companions. A conversation took place and an acquaintance sprang up. On subsequent occasions, as often as Senzangakona came to herd cattle, Nandi would come, bringing beer with her for him to drink in his ^{shelter} ~~amathlangata~~. And so a very close relationship came about between them. The result of this intimacy was that Nandi was found to be pregnant, for she no longer ^{was so quiet} ~~was so quiet~~ ^{gazed}. At first she tried to deceive her relations by saying she had an ailment known as itshali ^(ikaphili) which caused her to puca. ^{have a discharge} Such excuse was, for a while, accepted as a rational one. On the girl's mother, however, perceiving that 2 ~~or~~ and 3 months ^{went} had gone by and ~~the~~ the girl's breasts had swollen, the true cause of her illness was no longer a matter of conjecture, & Nandi's theory fell to the ground. "And who caused this?" they asked. "Senzangakona," the girl replied. This affair now came to the notice of Mudhli of the Zulu tribe, who gave strict instructions that the child, when born, should

*made this admission when the afa's sangani came to him. It seems probable that these people thus:
Nisilondolozeli, ni sicatelo take care of that for us and cause her to bring out that 'illness' of hers. Nandi's
people acted accordingly.*

be carefully concealed. Care was to be taken that it was suckled by its grand-
-mother, for it was inexpedient for Nandi to do so as her breasts would develop
to too noticeable a size. Mudhli, close relation of Senzangakona as he was,
warned Nandi's parents of the fact that Zulu kings ~~were~~ never allowed them-
-selves to have children, and therefore Senzangakona, as soon as he heard
Nandi had a child; would be bent on ~~putting~~ putting it to death. In course of
time the child was born; it turned out to be a boy. By degrees, unbeknown to
its father, it grew under the secret circumstances ^{prescribed} set forth by Mudhli. After
~~a while a rumour reached Senzangakona, by this time king, that a~~
~~child had been borne by Nandi. Not being certain as to whether this was a~~
~~fact or not he determined on the plan~~ Its grandmother ^{made} string
and took a measure of its waist, and by that means was able to judge how
it compared with other children. When the child had grown a little, Mudhli
expressed a desire to see it and it was accordingly ~~as~~ taken to his kraal and
there hidden under some mats in the hut. An intimation now reached
Senzangakona, by this time king, to the effect not only that he had had a
child by Nandi but that this very child was being harboured at Mudhli's
kraal. So astounding was this that the King instantly dispatched a body
of men to put ~~at~~ to death not only the child but Mudhli and his kraal
(amuzi) as well. But Mudhli, as the ~~impi~~ set forth, to kill him, had
also heard of his danger and ^{causing the child to be taken back to sangani,} left at once. On getting to the kraal the
^{found mudhli absent but} impi killed the ~~whabab~~ inmates thereof. It is reported that one of the
girls of the place, seeing one of her mothers slain, boldly asked the intruders
what they wanted and by what right they acted as they did. ^{destroying a king's kraal for a reason} They told her.
She thereupon challenged them to produce the child. Impressed by her
censure, they hurried into the huts and there, in one of them, ~~where~~ they
saw mats set up ^{etc} ~~under~~ ^{under} which ~~where~~ but very shortly before, the child had really lain.
Quickly they pulled the mats away, to find nothing there. "Is this the way
the king's people are treated, put to death ~~for~~ without a reason? Where is
your child; find him". Hearing what had occurred and feeling as if a gross
mistake had been made, he ordered his men forth once more to destroy the
kraal from which the false rumour had emanated, which was done.
Whilst all this was taking place, Tshaka, for that was the child's name,
was conveyed back to where his mother lived and from there taken to
Mbikwana's ka Mbenge's kraal. Here, safe from his father, he continued

*Nandi's pregnancy was reported to Senzangakona when he admitted he was fond of the girl. He made
this admission when the afa's sangani came to him. It seems Mudhli directed these people thus:*

to live and grow. Time passed. Years went by. Then another rumour sprang up to the effect that things were not quite as they should be. Senzanga-kona heard scented the rumour. Feeling that after all there might be something in the original assertion that he had a child, he determined on a more diplomatic if less summarily drastic ~~the~~ measure. It was as Nandi's lover that he would now approach the place where she and her alleged child lived. And so, pretending he wished to make her his wife, he caused a number of cattle to be conveyed to her parents as lobola for her, knowing that as his alleged son, ^{presumably} ~~would be~~ about 15 or 16 years of age, would be herding cattle, an excellent opportunity arose for those who accompanied the cattle to see and even recognize him.

But the boy's ~~parental~~ relations were not going to allow themselves to be outwitted in this fashion. His grand mother instructed Mbikwana to the effect that he was at once to go out to the boys herding and fetch Tshaka away, but he was to call him away in a particular manner. When the cattle came homewards they were to come at a run in order that a dense cloud of dust should rise and, under cover of such a dust, Mbikwana was to decoy the boy away. The plan proved completely successful, and Mbikwana conducted the boy to his grandmother, ~~he killed a pig for him, & they took him off from there~~ away to Dingiswayo's Mtetwa tribe, the tribe it will be remembered the ~~Qwabe~~ ^{Qwabe} tribe. Tshaka, however, refused to go back to the Qwabe tribe because, as he stated, when he had gone there on a visit, they had poured or placed ^{words} amasi in his hands which, because he could not ^{quickly} finish, remained until they got warm; moreover they were the people who had broken his clay bulls. There being no time to lose, secrecy being all important if the lad's life was to be saved, Mbikwana decided to take him to Dingiswayo's Mtetwa tribe, the tribe, it will be remembered, where his grand mother had come from. No sooner did Dingiswayo receive him than he placed him with ^{him} his Induna of his, Mqomboli by name.

At Dingiswayo's, Tshaka, still unknown to his anxious father, served in the army. He became distinguished as a warrior, was an iqwal. ^{noted} ^{great} ^{warrior}

A few more years elapsed, Tshaka grew into manhood; ^{he} became about the age ~~the~~ members of the Nokenke Regt. now are, say 54. ^{I cannot} ^x I thought N. said Mqomboli, but Nkukwana ^{says not} ^{Concluded}

(But Ndakwana is inclined to agree with it.)

agreed with this estimate). Anyhow, Senzangakona was once more worried by hearing a rumour to the effect that his supposed son was hiding among Dingiswayo's tribe. He resolved himself to go down and see if he could not find him. Such search had, of course, to be disguised, and so he said he was going down to ^{court} gomisa the girls, no doubt with the view to ~~finding~~ getting a wife. Hearing of the intended visit, Mudhli dispatched a messenger to Dingiswayo, warning him. Senzangakona, on arrival, was treated with great respect. Mats were laid on the ground many yards from the door of the ^{hut} clawit he was to occupy. In the meantime, Dingiswayo had apprised Ishaka of his father's coming. Unseen, Ishaka himself looked on his father. Dingiswayo gave Senzangakona quantities of meat and beer, and treated him with every mark of civility. He directed that Ishaka, with others, should go very early to the pond where people usually washed, & was himself, it being his intention afterwards to conduct Senzangakona there for a similar purpose. The intention was that Senzangakona should wash in water already ^{or dirtied} soiled by Ishaka's having washed in it. Ishaka followed his guardian's instructions, and Senzangakona himself, with all his followers, except two who were left behind to mind the ^{hut} clawit, went to the river to wash. Dingiswayo, ~~then~~ who remained at home, then sent for the two men left in charge, caused them to be taken into a hut, and there supplied both with meat and beer in large and inviting quantities. The men, however, at first demurred, but, on two others, in the employ of Dingiswayo (being his men), ~~being~~ saying they would remain in charge, ^{eventually} consented to go. Whilst the 2 men were engaged eating and drinking, Dingiswayo and Ishaka entered the ^{hut} clawit. Dingiswayo took a mat, ^{at foot of hut} ixitebe secansi, belonging to Senzangakona - that on which that king himself sat, - and made Ishaka stand on it. He, moreover, drew an assegai from the bundle belonging to Senzangakona + ~~gave~~ gave it to Ishaka, who held it, ^{while} standing, in both hands, as Dingiswayo applied various drugs not only over Ishaka but the mat and assegai as well, the intention being to enchant or bewitch the king, cause him to become sick, and die, when Ishaka would succeed him. This done, the two left the hut, Ishaka, of course, taking the assegai with him.

Next day Dingiswayo caused a lot of girls to be brought into Senzangakona's hut, and himself went in to converse with him. Senzangakona whiled away the time pleasantly enough, then, in pursuance of a pre-concerted

It might be observed here that Tshaka's coming was practically unknown at Orangeburg (Dingiswayo's kraal). Dingiswayo, Mqomboti, Mudhli (with some others living at a distance) were the only ones who knew his exact whereabouts.

plan, Dingiswayo ordered ~~all~~ the girls to leave, as he wished Senzangakona to see what he called his ^{great wives} amaqawe. Whilst sitting on the takata's mat, the young men passed in one by one, Dingiswayo, as they did so, singing their praises by way of introducing each individual to his distinguished visitor. It was so arranged that Tshaka should be the last to come in, and as it had been arranged so it was done - and in this way. By the time Tshaka ^{had to come in} ~~entered~~ that side of the hut on which Dingiswayo sat, ^{he sat in a particular position} was chock-a-block with men whose bodies were in contact with one another: with large curling horns poised on either side of his neck, dressed from top to bottom in — (sic) —, ^{entered} Tshaka ^{entered} ~~standing~~ ^{and} finding that side of the hut on which, according to custom, he ought to sit, full of men, he stood still a moment, immediately opposite his father so that his (Tshaka's) shadow completely covered him, and glancing at him, but once face to face, proceeded to a short distance and there sat down, not on the ground but ~~in a~~ raised ~~was~~ up. No sooner did the shadow fall on the king, their eyes meet, and Dingiswayo ask if Senzangakona knew who that was, than great trembling came over the latter. Report says he gave no reply to the interrogation. The druggs had widintly done their fatal work. Senzangakona got ill and decided to return home on the following day. He was accompanied by several of Dingiswayo's followers, who brought back news that it was very doubtful if the king would recover of his ~~poore~~ illness, seeing it was already of a serious character.

Mudhli then sent to ask Dingiswayo when he was going to instate Tshaka as king, begging him not to attempt to do so then, seeing the part Mudhli had taken in bringing up Senzangakona. He was afraid lest Senzangakona would kill him. Dingiswayo however advised Mudhli should be put to death. As Tshaka proceeded ^{on the way} to his father's kraal to assume the government, he killed all at once four prominent men, their names being as follow: Mudhli himself, Zivalele ka Jama, Sojisa ka Jama, and Nobongoza ka Jama. Zivalele is father of Mkanyele. Mudhli is Nhloou [my informant's] grandfather. [I will give Nhloou's son (whom I saw today) and so on backwards: Zibebu, Nhloou, Jimuni, Mudhli, Nkwelo, Ndaba & so on, Ndaba being king of the Zulu tribe.]

[Nhloou & Mkanyele say Mkanyele, but part of it adheres to Mkanyele.] 27

It might be observed here that Tshaka's identity

No sooner did Tshaka arrive than his coming was reported to Senzangakona, when the man so long in search of his son came by his death from fear because Tshaka had come to see him.

Just after this incident Zwide attacked Dingiswayo; then disturbances broke out in every direction. Men were sent one way, only to be sent another after returning from a bloody and successful mission. Presently the whole country was upside down, and it continued so until subdued by Tshaka's energetic action.

As showing his ~~also~~ personal strength, people say that once, at Dingiswayo's, a number of young men were determined on leaving the ^{Cattle} ~~isibaya~~. Tshaka did not wish them to leave, so he took up a stand at the gate and, holding on either side, successfully resisted ^{alone} the united strength of these men ^{ing} demanded exit, and as the last passed ^{out} ~~underneath his arms~~ he remained standing as before, clutching still to either side.

Then again he is reported, also at Dingiswayo's, to have got hold of a man, shield in hand, by the arm +, by an effort of strength, lifted + hurled him to one side, the shield flying into the air.

^{Here ends the account I got from Ndhlovu of Tshaka's early days.}
^{a young man} ^(insisting) ^{who} ^{is} ^{present} ^{with} ^{Ndhlovu} ⁺ ^{another} ^{khla}, ^{gives} ^{the} ^{following}:
Jobe, the father of Dingiswayo, was the son of Kali, and Kali was the son of Madango. [This goes beyond both Fynn + Sir J. Shepstone.]²⁸

Mukwana, after Ndhlovu had left, criticized his account of Tshaka thus: That Senzangakona went to Dingiswayo on a friendly visit, not to ^{court the girl} ~~gorilla~~. Seeing Senzangakona admitted the girl was pregnant by him, why this mystery about concealing the child? If Kings might not have children, the question about Nandi or her child being killed or both ~~she~~ would be expected to arise when the matter was first mentioned to Senzangakona and he admitted the ^{responsibility} ~~issue~~ was his. Still, S., when Nandi became pregnant, was not king + would not therefore ^{outside} ~~have been~~ so strict.

It is news to Mukwana that Nandi Zalela's ^{responsibility} ~~issue~~ ^{was} ~~his~~ + did not ^{marry} ~~gana~~ S. Common report on that point is that Tshaka went to live at Senzangakona's, who quarrelled with him, as he was ^{bad} ~~itshinga~~ and wanted to kill him. He then fled to Dingiswayo. Tshaka was born among Zangeni people.

The word itshati is unknown to Mukwana (probably ukuhlonipa).

The impi that went in search of the child probably ~~it~~ attacked Six ebeni.

~~at~~ kraal, a kraal which as Ndukwana believes ^(went out) ~~is~~ ^{sumaid} with Tshaka. Ndukwana got his information from a fairly old ^(say 72 now) man of the Zulu tribe.

amagqolo = a ba ntwa be nkosi. ^(Senzangakona was with ...)

The strings ^{made} pots from time to time must have been intended for Senzangakona, who else ~~was~~ were they for? If for him, then the incident shows he took an interest in the child & did not at that time desire to kill it.

Tshaka was ^{of the} iwombe regt (one of Senzangakona's). How could he have become that if he had never been ^{but} butaid by Senzangakona & lived with him?

Mqomboli was the father of Ngomane who again was the father of Magidi, a chief in lower Tugela Divn. ⁽²⁹⁾

Ensindeni is the name of a royal kraal (small) where those who got the ^(got) selwa ⁽³⁰⁾ put up.

^(space) Ndhlovu's account of Tshaka, which he says he got from his father, is at variance with Fynn's, Isaac's & Shepstone's in Bird's Annals of N., also with other native versions. ^(e.g. Ndukwana, Mkhanyo) It has to be remembered ^(that) Ndhlovu takes ^(a) a great interest in these matters, ^(and) that he heard them from his father, who, although he left Zululand in Dingana's reign, was nevertheless many years in the country, his father Mndhli being the very person referred to in the narrative. The story was told straight off without hesitation, though probably a little fiction was brought in here & there.

^(space) Note. Ndhlovu left with ^(his) followers about 1.45 P.M. ^(1902. He) ^(9.11.02) Will send Jantshi, a good ^(imbonji). See N.B. of general opinions ^(re) on native affairs for other subjects of conversation with N. yesterday & today.

^(11.1.03) ^(Sunday) ^(Norfolk Villas) Tshaka: story regarding his birth, wanderings & the visit of Senzangakona to Dingiswayo.

~~Mruji ka Timuni, ^(brother of chief Ndhlovu) speaks 7.1.03. Ndukwana present. - I was never butwaid but am about ntanga ka Nokenke. I had to go out and work as a boy and so ~~could~~ did not have frequent opportunities of hearing my father speak on old Zulu history. I used to carry his mats (amacausi).~~

~~Senzangakona was sent for by Dingiswayo. He went to Dingiswayo in company with my grandfather ^(Mndhli) and amakosikazi. A hut was set apart for him. In one hut whilst seated there with Dingiswayo a large number of young men of Dingiswayo's tribe entered the hut by pre-arrangement.~~

of Kings + Regiments all of which surprised + pleased them. My Dingana's igi-bongo (taken from Colenso's Grammar - First Steps in Zulu) are mixed up with Mpande's.

Generally approves Sir J. S.'s policy. Timuni considered Sir J. S. had on the whole deceived the people for he told them it would all come right + the time would come when they would laugh.

9.11.02 Sunday ^{blimpent: Phum, Ndubuma, others.} ^{today} ^{take eleven} Further conversation; Nkhlovu, with Bunu + others, his followers, present, also Nkukwana.

Nkhlovu started by saying he had considered my remarks of yesterday about the Natives being allowed to have their own Parliament and be permitted to manage themselves according to their own laws and customs. He said the present state of affairs has turned them into mice (*penduti amagandane*). If such a policy of allowing them to manage their own affairs were conceded, the people would be able to bear any burden, however great it might be, seeing that they would then have a full knowledge of what they were doing. Things have greatly altered from what they used to be. Take as an illustration the turning out to work on the Road Parties. In the former days boys used to look forward to such work, wondering when their turn would come. As soon as there was a demand for ^{such} labour, ~~the~~ boys would be found on the look out, (*si ya vel' u se eingile, u ya si hlasela*) but nowadays boys detest the work and do everything to escape it; run away to towns &c. Formerly men of note were known by the European authorities, and treated accordingly; now everyone is on a par with others and all are nobodies. Men should not continue to be *izigubie* (dummies), and not be allowed to *pendula*. Natives have become *izamukhu* (mutes); we cannot make ourselves heard. When cases are tried natives do not understand our procedure. The Magistrate says, 'Have you anything to say? Do you wish to give your evidence on oath or to make a statement?' But the man addressed is puzzled and does not know what to say, whereas if native custom had been followed he would have been able to present a better defence.

Timuni left Zululand in Dingana's time with his elder brother Sigqobana because they were to be killed. Although practically independent in Natal, Timuni was afraid of holding the *inkosi* (*qul'inkosi*) as this would create the impression he was a king, when the Zulu people would attack him.

Inteto u isiquwaga the law is a tyrant (no respecter of persons). A law is passed by the European and it is forcibly applied straightaway. There ought to be councils among the nations, for no man can ^{make laws} bumba inteto alone. Sir J. Shepstone deceived the people by appointing many Chiefs in the country who are known as amakosi. This is a false form of government. The land can only be ruled by ^{a single chief} igama (libe) linge. At present there is conflict & disagreement in every direction. Even though Nkhlovu might approach another chief and invite discussion on common affairs, the other will find some pretext for refusing, preferring to go along his own line, leaving it to the Magistrate to decide what is to be, & considering as sufficient the talk with the Magistrate, without previously conferring with fellow chiefs. N. himself tried, when the late Native Suitors' Commission (Samuelson, Chadwick & Allison) met at Stanger, to get others to agree as to what they should pay to the Commission, but the others resisted. As a matter of fact the chiefs were called in separately & so must have expressed divergent views. Every one likes to feel he has an ^{chief} inkosi; we have none. We are dhlibikele nje (disintegrated) on account of our having so many chiefs. Were there fewer we would not ^{lose direct} pambuka as we do. Uya jabul' o az' inkosi yake; for then he would ^{guilt} hambisa himself ngo mteto ^{we} inkosi. We do not understand and cannot appreciate white men's laws. They may not in themselves be bad for us, but we do not understand & cannot assimilate them. Nkhlovu often argues with others as to whether Europeans call children or not into towns to work. N. considers they are not called. Ulike wam big' umlungu na? ni dhala ngabo (You charge them falsely, ^{you} foolishly attribute to them what as matter of fact they do not do); ba hlabule ba? (quote a case of anyone they have ^{taken} from his or her parents. They pay wages, alright. The fact of the matter is children hlabuka nge nhliziyo yabo, they ^{have} tand' ukudhla, kangura ^{used} ubuhle, no one actually beckoned or called him or her. After getting their pay children will spend it on drink and clothes in order themselves to become white men.

Nkhlovu now quotes a rather remarkable illustration of what he calls ukwe-duka (going astray). A number of years ago Maxwell took some 176 or 186 natives to Kimberley to work on the diamond fields (Du Toit's Pan). ³² N. was one of this number. Some did not reach their destination through sickness. N. thought the body would hold fast to one another. Not so, for when

they got to Kimberley, ^{then} a large per centage took to liquor - easily procurable. N. ^(ni dhl'aman'ya?) remonstrated, but they persisted. ^{He} Was there 12 months and then came home, but only with 4! Liquor played havoc among them. Then the Basutos made a dead set at them at the mines, for ^{Nickson's} No gang were Police set over the Basutos. The Basutos one night caught one of the police, cut off his lips (showing all his teeth, ~~and~~ slit both ears, cut him on ^{the} right side of forehead ^{&c}, & let him go. There were indeed many strange practices at Kimberley. Some of the Police even cut off their ^{heads} ^{big} igicoos, whilst others tied them up with string to their overgrown hairs. In other ways too did the Basutos injure the police, ~~and~~ smashing their teeth in with an <sup>gre-
d'vare</sup> imbokodo &c. At the end of all these experiences those who returned came back with little or no money.

What is necessary is to teach the boys wisdom ^(uku) (gondai) and cause ~~the~~ the land to ^(uku) (tomba) arrive at years of discretion. We have ^(uku) (gogaid uku-lahleka), sought out all those things which disintegrate, and made them the instrument for governing. ^(peoples) (Zinhlalo) formerly ^(citchile) have now come into view. ^(regarded as unimportant)

The remedy is this, according to N., to ^{gotta} goqa everyone & ndawonye ^(in place) i.e. under the former laws and customs, and enforce education, ^(land) ^(matter) compel everyone to learn to read & write. If this were done the ^(land) igoo would ^{(be in a position to work out its own salvation).} outwa.

By creating a national ^(native) parliament there would be no chance of natives becoming hostile, from a consciousness of their strength.

On the occasion of Sir J. Shepstone going ^{to Natal} to come, ^{FILE 71, 11-79-91} Mntshwana ka Infusi of Uнди ngaba'id, he said the circumstances did not warrant war. ⁽³³⁾ If Mehlokazulu went into Natal and killed girls and relations there that should not be permitted to be a ⁽³⁴⁾ casus belli. When in Zululand on previous occasions the same people (Siraxopi) had killed their mothers, where were they going? ^(be balab' onina be be yaki). Mehlokazulu killed people in another country ^(izwe la mang'amadoda) therefore they must be given up in accordance with the demand. Not many years before, a number of ⁽³⁵⁾ Cetshwayo's forces had fought against the Boers at Magonggo, and met with success. They felt confident they could do the same against the English. In those days too it was ^(doing) regarded as ^(wrong) wrong to reply to the King when he had expressed his opinion. Cetshwayo took his advice from hot-headed young men, as he did when he ^(wanted to give battle etc) telad ngapinkabi, for the ^(object) izinsizwa ngaba'id. ⁽³⁶⁾

Cetshways agreed with mere boys (vum abafana). Just about the outbreak of the war the bearing of the youth towards their elders was extremely impudent. When, for instance, a man's wife had come to the Royal Kraal, the young men, wanting ^{no doubt,} to get back again into the hut she occupied, would say, 'So quickly, what you want to do to her' (tohetcha, masinyane and zeka her). In this way youths had come to delel' izwe ^{deby the water}.

Nhlovu's suggestion at a solution of the Native Question is that incwadi should be telwa' ka wo work' umhlabati, that ukugiya ~~se se~~ should be brought to an end. The country should, however, be put in a fit state to receive such wholesale instruction. Natives should be permitted to govern according to their own laws and customs, & when they had been given control over their own affairs, to lela incwadi. (Ubuyala-yala) would then pela. Having learnt to read, children would, by reading izibongo and back history of their people, come to know something of their traditions and achievements. Nhlovu says it is very noticeable how obedient and respectful children are to their parents among Europeans; native children are not thus. Europeans are not in trouble with regard to their young.

The white man ^(Englishman) entered the country very quietly and unostentatiously; now, however, having got a firm foothold, they are qiyeme.

As regards prostitutes, they dumaz' izwe. In towns (izibuna) se si pikula i.e. plentiful, and boys ^{in consequence} no longer care for pure girls in the country. They can obtain all the sexual intercourse they want by paying money for it. (ibumba ^{means gamkhora} (isimpantsholo)).

Girls should be beaten and sent back; they would then inform mothers what had happened to them and cause these to fear.

Very little drastic action would be sufficient to frighten native prostitutes away from Durban; they would soon etuka. Now one beholds the spectacle of girls carrying illegitimate children not on their backs but in their arms, à la the white man woman.

Nhlovu thinks when being educated, people should also be taught English, for boys complain of not being able to understand masters and mistresses. The object should be to give them (ingqondo) (wisdom, or rather a capacity for judging for themselves). Then again, this education is necessary from the point of view of the parents, who are so placed that they want to know how to act under various circumstances when coming in contact with the European, and also what is going on in the world around them.

(12)

go naked into a bush
 ingira mbumbulu - just before the
 Ndondakensuka battle - because they cut
 large shields - ^{ba}imbunluzo
~~tukama qisi was mounted on kulu - beast killed~~
~~a wmbi ^{can} found up gardens~~
~~should go to kusal - sasa vatal - then~~
~~then they ^{would} kill a beast because they are~~
~~delele - treated the with contempt~~
~~a god a thing must not be killed without~~
~~com - in a body to the beast to complete~~
 hloboinga universal
 they have invoked
 no amalawon in Ithakes region
 invoke all regions of all girls or men forbidden
 to hloboinga referent to hloboinga, moko appointed
 to ingira vob tumpile
 invoke = in all regions?
 Infirmit of isikbe. isirobo.

9-11-02

hwa bekji

Ndhlou ka Timuni appear to be informant here (13)

sigongqona senja si hlonyane
ngandupen ya manlengwa, leka
perulpe

Punga + mapeba (alusa) by
 Lubololwenja
 Lubolo zilas malandela
^{Perube}
 Laboko
 malandela
 Zulu + Qwabe
 Punga

Senzang Mudhli ka Nkwelo ka Ndaba
 Senyangakona ^{ka Juma} ka Ndaba
 Zibelezi
 Ndhlou
 Timuni
 Mudhli
 Nkwelo
 Ndaba
 Punga
 mapeba

Magoquma ka mbesa
 Jiyana ^{wa kwa} Mzuzo
 Jantshe ka Nonjila (nhlohi ka
 Moseyi, Mshlovi brother ^{senza ngakona})
 Mthololo ~~ka~~ sickly

penduka or award and
 however great the burden it would not
 matter.
 siya vel' u se si qingile - u ye si
 klasela. now run away to town.
 we had a way in ma kosi. yoteke
 kahle.
 not be a girl and not a boy
 gamaken kosi pemeli.
~~not be a boy and not a girl~~

qingile
 Jimuni left in Dingaan's time
 with Mnewa ka Sigwibane
 gab' mkozi

Every man has a right to tell others
 what he feels.

know nothing - have not heard.

mteto u in gaga ga.
 no man can bump alone.

because I many makosi-
 igama linga. om kosi no inkani.

met before going to Maqozi.

we say Dhlhikela nje because many makosi
 would not have been my job and a girl

inkosi yake. hambisa ngom tefo we nkosi.
 - we do not know & cannot appreciate lives.

u ka swa big umlunga na? ni Dhlhala
 ngabo ka khubule ka? the Dhlhala

money. khubule nje Dhlhala
 yabo taw' akudle, kangana abule

no one called him other.

Dhlhala
 duka Mzuzo 176 place on year Kimberly

Lambana (H-1) - gologo nikh'amangji na want to
 go home - don't care for his reason up at night.

du. Jozit Pan 12 month
 ma mutilate. Desutos - police cut - ni zo ku

fermana in kuba - izicoco cut off or tied up
 with string in kinyi ye gaba
 Dasuto sakarap Police returned with 4
 izungu - no name
 Gonda - tomba
 goty uku lankaka
 cithile yinkhlopo
 if igqwa ndawonye + compelled to
 learn would long lunga. vutwa
 no chance of fighting

Somsewen bent. & Ncome.
 msutshwana ka dufane (unde)
 ngabas - said no impi could fight
 be kulal' mina he ye yape
 killed in ywe la many amadoda gave
 them
 fought with Boers of at Pragonzga
 a man - cannot pendula inkosi band.
 C. telas ngqzi nkabi ngab igonsi wa
 vuma a labana Hance

[Handwritten mark]

(Zeka)
 tshetsha mizungane delat izive - beer & wine
 telw' incwadi wokha uhlabathi / kal' uku
 gya se se solution
 lunga - lunges chwa + bonga nika mifeto
 la kiti then telw' incwadi - uba yalu
 yalu lobu would pela
 who we would be able to see old / zibonga
 ngane yakiti / menhlipiso - be pikw'
 ukukhatirika no hupekaa

qiyeme?

we ngena's ka saam ^{now} qiyame
 dumaz' izwe prostitutes
 zeta - have sexual intercourse with
 izibungu se si kuluy - boys no longer care for
 girls
 got yata + sent back would tell others +
 make them fear
 ours would soon stuka
 children carried in front like European women
 learn English with + ingqondo (wisdom)
 ought to have our children educated so that

Kali in column

the rest: Shona? Ashikwa? others?

(18)

... they can tell us what is going on. Missionaries bad. not to Kolwa not to say fathers left us in the dark

19-11-1907

once tando's went to go to Cape to learn.

cultivate business capacity. Kolwa is a... with not... show they were used to... not... (57)

izholobo zake one ngona

... will live... glad to have... into an inferior state. (58)

utanda here ejisi

Kali ka Madango, Kali being father of Jobe (Dingiswayo's father) (32) Mankwana ka Mbingi. Mudi, zwalele ka... of Mankwazi. Sojisa ka Juma. Kobongo ka Juma.

(19)

Madango Put in column

Kali Jobe Dingiswayo

Somvoti (Mgobos ka Dingiswayo)

Mlandela ka Mbiya Sokwetskata

matshodi ka Mgoye ka Dingiswayo

Per Mankwana

name of king

... there... who... of the... went not to... (59)

S. ... was his... (60)

... (61)

... (62)

... (63)

... (64)

amagogo - abantwa be nkosi

the strings must have been to show Senzangakhona
amaahlonke - how ^{his} Tsh. comes to be if he did not

live with Senzangakhona
if butys could not have children that
the question about Abantu being killed should have
arisen when they reported to Mthaka.

Mqomboti not Mqomboti, father of
Ngwenyane (father of Magidi (Chief Tugela's son))
Kali

Short Papers (Notebooks) (small - P) in File 60
Take in che vta (11) (17)

ANSWERING TEST QUESTIONS.— Write only on one side of the page, leaving the other side for corrections. In translating Unseens into English, and rendering English into Latin or French, write on alternate lines only, thus leaving the Tutor space to make ample corrections. Use a different book for each subject, but not for answering different parts of the same Test Paper; if, however, you prefer to use separate books for different branches, you must send stamps for extra postage, for the whole course in advance, to the Registrar.

Allow at least twenty-four hours to elapse between reading up a subject and answering a Test Paper. Unless this rule is observed, you cannot call the answers your own, and so they form no test of your knowledge. A Student may put on his answers, the time taken on them, for the tutor's guidance. If reference be made to a text-book for any reason in answering the paper, write "Ref" in the margin, so that the Tutor may see throughout exactly how you stand. Where a choice is allowed in questions to answer, omit those in which corrections would be least helpful. Solutions to all will be sent.

RETURN OF ANSWERS.— Send your answers to the Tutor the same week as you receive the Test Papers. If from a plain necessity you are unable to send any work in due course, make up lost ground as quickly as you can; but, if you find that this is impossible, or, if you do not wish to have recourse to the methods suggested below, ask the Registrar to send you the solution, stating the subject and number, and adding nothing but Name, Address, and Register Number.

Do not return papers with your answers, or enclose anything of the nature of a letter.

RETENTION OF PAPERS.— Unless arrangements have been made for retaining, all papers must be returned within three weeks of date of receipt. Students may keep papers till the end of their arranged course on payment of a retaining fee, which is, for single subjects:—Matriculation, 2s. 6d., Intermediate, 5s., Degree, 7s. 6d. For all subjects:—Matriculation, 7s. 6d., Inter. Arts, 10s. 6d., B.A. and Inter. Sc., 15s. B.Sc. Courses in some subjects cannot be retained, and in others only by special arrangement. Under no circumstances can permanent possession of the papers in any case be obtained. For Intermediate and B.A. English it is decidedly economical to retain.

STUDENTS FALLING INTO ARREARS WITH THEIR WORK on account of illness or pressure of duties may be transferred to another section of their class for the same Examination on payment of a "transference fee" of 2s. 6d.; or, if already in as late a section as they care to work with, they may have their course redistributed for another Examination at a redistribution fee of 10s. 6d., accompanied by payment for Special Subjects papers received at the rate of 1s. each. They are then entitled to the full number of papers on Special Subjects in the new course, but in other subjects resume work at the point where they left off. These fees are not in any sense a fine, but simply compensation for the extra trouble of registration, and for the longer period a set of papers is being used. The Registrar will send the required Schedule on application. Applications for redistribution cannot be entertained after the date of the Examination for which a student was working has passed.

REGISTER NUMBER.— A Register Number is given to a Student on admission and must be used whenever writing to the College; otherwise, as reference cannot readily be made, the answer is often delayed. Students are warned not to mistake the numbers on the sets of lessons which have been assigned them, nor on the receipt for fees for their register number. Should a registered student subsequently take up another subject for the same Examination, another number will be given, which should be used in all communications relating to that subject. Special attention is requested to this important regulation.

RETURN OF PAPERS.— The whole working of the Forwarding Office is dependent upon attention to the rule. All papers must be returned within three weeks of receipt, unless arrangements have been made to "retain." Your set of papers is intended for another student in a later section, and, unless promptly returned, another set has hurriedly to be made up for him, which involves much needless trouble, and often a reprinting of some of the papers.

Preserve your papers (Notes, Tests, and Solutions) carefully, and return with as few folds as possible, entirely covered and well protected by a broad wrapper for transmission by post. Address them to the Forwarding Clerk, Burlington House, Cambridge. Name, Address, and Register Number must either be written on a sheet of paper, placed at the top of the returned papers, or put on the front of the wrapper.

Abelou (chief).

1.1.03
to the party

Ndihanga, Subloza

Did Senzangakona go to Dingiswayo on friendly visit & not to Gomisa?

~~Did Senzangakona go to Dingiswayo on friendly visit & not to Gomisa?~~

Ngama (39) thought would die in Zululand. No heart to speak - good for us formerly.

isomo Samakazi (40) defeated Inbuzisi (41) but Zululand assisted & so defeated Inbuzisi.

Inkhosweni (42) the Inkoto (43) no heart for anything now a dog eat sweet potatoes.

Libolobwenja (Lokoja) (44)

Abelou does not know Libolobwenja as grand father (45)

We are amaMangwa (45) It was there (there) with a steel (45) Shlongwe nge nduker yama Mangwa (45) beka pepulu (45)

Ishukuzangaye uMangolwanthle,
Isokangangi ka Cetshwayo - dog
not busa busasi if no intosi
if there is He is the iyise wabo (46)

Manteresa, Liboza (was a hearer there) -
Maharamat, ~~awabath kona~~
Liboza ka Nantabanda (47) NANTABANDA

made the inkata the petty of the
inkata - butwa sham from all zindhlala
ze zizwe - go for a year with hands
& cattle - hatsha when you out
tunda - be intervals, wase
khathe lo intervals.

It would be flatted + mixed with -
tandwa say wa unthi become
the rest of the kind
inkhala el inkabi - always sit
on it - (wash) stop working with

to (tonya) amabozu so that (temp)
will be catch in defeat.
placed on top of above notes
peza kwe ze qungu
busa be zumbube
to face of lions - on a

amafut, enkhwati (carried by the sticks)
stick across in centre - patwan nge
miti
- about 12 in diameter (48)

Liboza Saw Mbuzazi (nkata)
Mbuzazi asseyo with inkungu
inkhala nkato, nkonto,
induku yo fonda (wasa). Still
existing (49)

mpungu
We do not know the gate
aye sango. la kato. kima.
One sango is to go d (kongu)

We should show the gate - We cannot
open a gate (51)

keeper, (intantokazi). Nojikekwa
Nzuzza (aba kiva) Libozas (ibonze)
mpunga rest of mscapsa rest (52)

(Krestel) different kinds -
(Kzwati) inkhala, intombe,
isisanto, migaongo (pahlacwati), ibonze,
khwelwe (kzwati-kwe inkosi), ukhangukhangu (53)

Enapasolo [name of kraal behind the
Nodungu kraal (pounds). (54)

7-03

Mruyi ka Timuho. Ndutu na present
not butwa's. ntanga ka kokeke
we had to get money
Carried father's camel
Senzaga boma sent for by D. went with
muthobi & makosikayi. Entered a
hut. ~~but~~ ~~with~~ ~~him~~.
Thaka unknown entered after ma
had entered. Was young woman!
o ntal ~~indaga~~ ~~so~~ ~~ku~~
lezwo ku be nkosi ya kwa mtal
I put a ~~gumipondo~~ ~~gugu~~
was given. Intang ~~so~~
si khaba kesa ku be Senza
ngakona. sat down. Tala du
D. asked S. U ngay yi bonake
utkongana ya S. tula & look

a few
pounds
with huge
names

weyaa

~~He surprised the young man. He then
pointed out Thaka. ~~with~~ ~~the~~ ~~people~~
He had brought him (weyaa)
Senzaga's ankosi kaji then
went forward & kissed S. ngala
and added. Then asked for an
assagai (mangasa) showing it he
was presented with one. After
brought by mtetwa people. Then
ambassadors of ~~indaga~~ for some
time. I then ~~praised~~ with mpakat
D. they said ^{to S} we had better shalala
to ~~praise~~ I was given a sleeping
hut. S & M. went to sleep.
M. spoke to S. & said why do
you shalala with so old a man
you can't do this. Get ill (gula)
let me ~~massage~~ him. ~~praised~~
Then message sent to D.
to say S. is ill but M. would~~

Ndlovu has not got a good word for the missionaries. His scheme of education does not include kolwasing. That is something which can be done without.

Boys who become kolwas reproach their fathers for having left them in the dark. ^(evidence given 1-1-1905)
Ndlovu, Luboza

2-1-1905
also present
2-1-03
2 Norfolk Isles. Further Conversation with Ndlovu ka Timuni. File 71/81-2.

I yesterday had a further chat with Ndlovu, who has come to Durban on a visit. Ndakwana and Luboza present, Luboza being son of Noribanda - has come along with Ndlovu to Durban, and belongs to Mxapo regiment.

Ndlovu says that Mtonga once sent him Mbuyazi's things to look after, his inkata (for he had one), assegais, intshanelo, induker yo pondo (ie. a stick made of rhinoceros - this stick was an ^{wooden} ^{a stick} ^{knobbed} ^{wood} ^{knob}). It was directed himself to take care of these things and to hand them over to Mkhungu, with whom they now are. When ~~put~~ sent to Ndlovu they were very carefully put in a waggon and by that means conveyed to him.

We cannot find your gate; ^{space} the gateway in our own times consisted in going and tendering our allegiance.

The Chief laid stress on this, his meaning is the native people, so far from being taken into our fold and becoming one with us, are standing outside and drifting further away as time goes on, and at the same time treated unsympathetically. Our fathers, like a Mize Lemu si (this might be the name 'Mr. Williams') and Jekiseni (Mr. Jackson) who were magistrates at Stanger, were men who governed the natives well. They knew them. ⁵³ Nowadays the younger generation have come up who do not know the people. It is to the present generation, the sons of such men as those referred to, that we look and expect them to take our cause in hand and to help us. We are a falling people and we need help.

At the beginning ^{space} of this interview Luboza said he, by direction of Ndlovu, had been to see Jiyana, a man of the iThlaba regiment (aged, I reckon, about 82). He asked Jiyana to tell him something about the origin of the Zulu people, but he refused on the ground that he no longer had any heart in anything. Formerly he was a man of position and treated with respect. Now he was a ~~me~~ dog and had been reduced to living

on mere sweetpotatoes (batata). The messenger had therefore, to return without getting any of the required information.

In reply to N, I pointed out what appeared to me the proper procedure, something which would be effective in adjusting a state of affairs rapidly becoming worse, & that was to collect all Zulu law and custom and lay it before the Europeans in a printed form. This would help to educate the European and cause them to try and understand and know the people better. At present people were very ignorant. It was necessary to get a zwato and, by ^{culb} pehlaing gradually to kindle that flame which shall in some real manner bring about that union which so far has never existed. For the tendering of allegiance was an unreal act; though this allegiance was tendered it has never been accepted. The Natives are still in their holes; out of these they must come. They cannot continue to retain within them the matter of a boil which should be pierced. And as regards the younger generation helping them, we, speaking for myself, are ready, but on our part we ask for ^{the} Natives to assist us by opening their hearts fully and hiding nothing, or, when we go to our own people with what we have got they may be dissatisfied and not arrive at the conviction we desire. || As an illustration of this reticence, take the case of Nabantulu (by the way he is Luboza's elder brother), who, when sent for ~~me~~ by me, on the advice of others, did not come. He was blind, but Mkando too was blind and he came. ⁵⁶ Luboza explained that he was the cause of Nabantulu not coming, & this was because, apart from being blind, he is an invalid. I went on to point out that Natives should consider how best to effect what I proposed if they believed in its efficacy. It would be necessary to get some white man to do the work. They should communicate together to this end, i.e. the more enlightened among them. The Native problem was a great subject and fraught with enormous difficulty. We Europeans do try and grapple with it, and, clever as we are, do not as yet know everything.

Mhlou quite agreed about the necessity for their giving us information in regard to themselves, and is himself very frank & open and, what is more, causes others to be so.

though I do not say there may be something in the story
 I had very many children -
 The ~~one~~ ^{one} was a girl - she came
 from a distance & it was a custom for a girl
 coming from a distance to take precedence
 over others especially if she is the daughter
 of another ~~in~~ ⁱⁿ ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~house~~ ^{house} & even if there are
 already wives & children at the house she
 enters.

I think I dropped when the Sigebe had
 passed. The makosikase tungazhad
 & rumblet, a rumour ~~that~~ ^{they} ~~was~~ ^{was} ~~very~~ ^{very}
 jealous & a rumour sprang up that I
 was to be killed. Such rumour I think led
 to Y's running away.

There is a definite statement to the effect
 that I was born Koo Nina.

Muchli was killed whilst Timoni was
 still 'on the back'. Timoni was seized
 by Ntanta ^{wakite} wa Kwa Zulu, ~~wakel~~
 Sengy gatona's kaka's were

Mobanga, Sigebe, ~~Ozobani~~
~~...~~

Kilove Mruyi and Mutyana present.

The birth of Thaka and the visit of Sengy-
 ngakona.

Heard from the Timoni Salusa's ~~...~~
 one boy found out something sat here -
 an inkuphla - dishes etc. - a pakha
 small then. Decided to watch - Grand
 came with 2 men - girl & was discovered.
 The men left & the girls were ~~...~~
 I sent them to call Kandi to ~~...~~
 she came with the girl he was with
 The boys (delad) & I was in ~~...~~
 Point out the one you have come to
 see. She pointed S out. ~~...~~
 Why do you look at her. I ~~...~~

she N. then went to Siilawon. The boys
look off the other girls to their amalamon.
Nandi daughter of Mbeki was Eangein
Makidama was son of Mbeki.

Every day the girls came to the place.
+ S. hlo bongela's there. ^{beer brought} The girl
told unrlandwane. What

is the matter with her people said
Oh she has itshato. i.e. to say
according to us is ikambi! The
amabele became onnyama at
the nipples.

The girl said I do not know but the
man I love is Sezanakona. She
told amadoda. The men were then
sent to ask at S's place. Came
to Muddli as being the great
man in charge of S. gave sacc.
of what girl N. had said. + that
She said she liked S. M. said well

I'll ask the boys about it. He then
called S. + said "These men say
this girl has ikambi. Do you
like her? He replied yes we
do tandanya. He said "Go away
I have heard". M. did not tell S.
he had caused her to be pregnant
but told him only she was ill +
not to expect her to visit again.
From those days no kings could
Zala abantwana. S. then
went away. M. said "You of the
Elangeni whatever that inkont's
water may turn out to be a no
pi to kela = (a no si bekela),
~~what~~ whether it be a girl or
a boy. If she zala's she must not
need a ~~to her~~ ^{to her} ~~no~~ ^{no} ~~min~~ ^{min} but
mind kulu. Men went away
M. said to S. "The men have

merely come to say Mr has it kept in,
I have directed them to treat & doctor
her and so you must not be
alarmed or put out of the you
do not find her visiting.

I was glad - ~~the~~ a report was
brought to me to say it was a boy.
I knew of this but not S. I
merely thought she was ill. S's
mother put it in tambo & sent it to
measure the size of little S's
stomach.

S's mother (own) later on said she
was sick & called doctors who
put her in yumbija gongai -
to omubi. A large causi
was laid with yumbija - causi
ke nduli & ikwani & ibuma.
wa rongwelwa nge 'buma
causi as not to be seen

The child was brought. Grandmother
examined it & in the daytime
hid it behind the mat & among the Yumbija
People discovered there. was something
in the hut & told S. about it. Don't
remember what tribe people these
were. Janna at this time was
dead. - died whilst S. was a child.

S. lived at another kpal being an
insigwa. Se he m nukisa ee ngat
ngo Kwake & he said where
did I get it from? Mr heard
this rumour, he visited the
child & had it taken away to its
mother's. They were be killed
S's mother's kpal & killed
the inmates. S's sister interfered
& said why do you kill us.
Kipsa loko oku se ma causi
the girl had heard why they
were being killed.

The indodakazi said kill me if you kill her Si mother. They sabaid as it was ^{not} said they were to kill her. ~~They said~~ The girl said "Hlalami kona lopi' emnyango kunge kuse ni ze nini kipe". They acted accordingly. They waited to next day. She said go in & kipa him. They entered the & tore aside the curtains & said Ha! kanti kake. & Dzi gijini sent to S. to say what harm does this krad which is being killed done. S. said "But where is that which they said was there?" & this greatly annoyed S. He thereupon sent an impi to kill off the krad of those

who had made this false report even Dops are to be killed.

After this So ku hlalwa ku buswa.

Si's mother gambad. ^{the boy} I think I do not know who gave the name to Nandi's mother or Si's mother but it had its origin out of the itshati. itshati is blaspemy the word imbi. Mudli might have given the name.

D. byelaid langeni. became a boy & a lusa. Si was allowed to marry. N. was sent for and married S. N. however, left D. at her home for she was told not to receive only her mother was to do so. I have not heard

if N. had another child by S. J. was then a little boy, perhaps a usurper. N. then lived with S. She was lobolad. Only M. knew of the existence of S. J. S. married various women being a inkosi. After some time a further rumour arose about J. "we gola there shangeni." The men at S's said we ought to find out if there is anything shangeni. The inkosi veza iinkomo to endas so under ~~the~~ pretext of lobolad they might find something out about J. J. & the boys shangeni had a quarrel & this quarrel was what caused the rumour about J. being S's

child to be revived. For J. xabana with Inkedama ka Mbeki they bargained amatshe/enthle. M. said ^{left} intungwana li ya nge yisa - li 'gok' iinkomo zam (ie. hlaba iinkomo a zi tawayo). He killed S's stone (standing for cattle).

N. was still kwafulu i. at S's kraal.

They were to take cattle & observe the boys with the shangeni cattle. Spies (igaisaba) were taken & put on watch. S's grandmother called Mbikwana & said "When the cattle come back you go under cover of the dust which be on whilst the cattle are running home & get the boy away to bring

[24]

him into the kraal through
 an entrance. The other boys
 will then go on with the
 cattle. Mbikivana did
 this. There were many boys.
 The boys were examined.
 Kaya ku yi bon' ingwebu
 -ingwebu ka yise ka yi sukile.
 The grand mother told Mbik-
 to tula inkusu we nyama
 (isibomka) = igata = isigath
 isigath. He brought it
 down. Hamba u yonzi tuku-
 sela wena lokun u ya funwa.
 He took him up to his kraal.
 He gave a iduna eli mhlope
 fa 7. lap' li yi nteka (tena)
 Eaten at night. enywa
igabe ie. pekeat all the
 same night. I took the meat

University Correspondence College.

Recapitulation, Vacation, and other Oral Classes are held at the Resident Branch, Burlington House, Cambridge, and at University Tutorial College (Science Department of University Correspondence College), Red Lion Square, London, W.C. The fees are in all cases reduced to Students of University Correspondence College.

MATRICULATION.

At Cambridge, Resident Students are admitted to the Matriculation Class at any time of the year.

At University Tutorial College, a Recapitulation Class is held during the three weeks immediately preceding each January and June Examination. The classes include daily lectures in each subject, and Private Tuition is given whenever deemed advisable. At Cambridge, Oral Instruction (consisting mainly of private tuition), is given during the same periods.

A Last Week Class in Experimental Science meets daily during the week preceding each Examination.

RECAPITULATION AND VACATION CLASSES.

Preliminary Scientific (M.B.), and Intermediate Science.

(All the Classes are held at University Tutorial College).

Vacation Classes in Practical Chemistry and Biology are held in the Summer (four weeks), Christmas (three weeks), and at Easter (three weeks). The Summer Vacation Class is intended for Beginners.

A Recapitulation Class for January Prel. Sci. is held in all subjects during the three weeks immediately preceding the Examination.

A Last Month Recapitulation Class for July Examinations in all subjects is held.

A Last Week Class in Practical Physics meets daily during the week preceding each January and July Examination.

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE.

(All the Classes are held at University Tutorial College).

Classes are held in subjects for the B.Sc. Examination, commencing the first Tuesday in August, and extending over a period of four weeks. Special attention is paid to practical work.

A class in Practical Physics, Chemistry and Geology is held during the Christmas Vacation, extending over three weeks. A knowledge of Inter.Sc. work alone is required of Students joining this Class.

A Last Month Class is also held commencing four weeks before the Examination.

INTERMEDIATE ARTS.

At University Tutorial College a Recapitulation Class is held during the four weeks immediately preceding the Examination. The Classes include daily lectures in each subject, and Private Tuition is given whenever deemed advisable.

At University Tutorial College, and also at Cambridge, a Vacation Class in Greek for Beginners is held daily during August.

BACHELOR OF ARTS.

At Cambridge, Courses of Daily Lectures in each subject, supplemented by private tuition in Mathematics (and in other subjects whenever such a course is deemed advisable), are given during the month beginning July 31st.

MASTER OF ARTS.

Classes are held at Cambridge during the month preceding the Examination, and also during August.

At Cambridge, the Boating and Tennis Clubs are open to both resident and non-resident students.

ANSWERING TEST QUESTIONS.—Write only on one side of the page, leaving the other side for corrections. In translating Unseens into English, and rendering English into Latin or French, write on alternate lines only, thus leaving the Tutor space to make ample corrections. Use a different book for each subject, but not for answering different parts of the same Test Paper; if, however, you prefer to use separate books for different branches, you must send stamps for extra postage, for the whole course in advance, to the Registrar.

Allow at least twenty-four hours to elapse between reading up a subject and answering a Test Paper. Unless this rule is observed, you cannot call the answers your own, and so they form no test of your knowledge. A Student may put on his answers, the time taken on them, for the tutor's guidance. If reference be made to a text-book for any reason in answering the paper, write "Ref" in the margin, so that the Tutor may see throughout exactly how you stand. Where a choice is allowed in questions to answer, omit those in which corrections would be least helpful. Solutions to all will be sent.

RETURN OF ANSWERS.—Send your answers to the Tutor the same week as you receive the Test Papers. If from a plain necessity you are unable to send any work in due course, make up lost ground as quickly as you can; but, if you find that this is impossible, or, if you do not wish to have recourse to the methods suggested below, ask the Registrar to send you the solution, stating the subject and number, and adding nothing but Name, Address, and Register Number.

Do not return papers with your answers, or enclose anything of the nature of a letter.

RETENTION OF PAPERS.—Unless arrangements have been made for retaining, all papers must be returned within three weeks of date of receipt.

Students may keep papers till the end of their arranged course on payment of a retaining fee, which is, for single subjects:—Matriculation, 2s. 6d., Intermediate, 5s., Degree, 7s. 6d. For all subjects:—Matriculation, 7s. 6d., Inter. Arts, 10s. 6d., B.A. and Inter. Sc., 15s. B.Sc. Courses in some subjects cannot be retained, and in others only by special arrangement. Under no circumstances can permanent possession of the papers in any case be obtained. For Intermediate and B.A. English it is decidedly economical to retain.

STUDENTS FALLING INTO ARREARS WITH THEIR WORK on account of illness or pressure of duties may be transferred to another section of their class for the same Examination on payment of a "transference fee" of 2s. 6d.; or, if already in as late a section as they care to work with, they may have their course redistributed for another Examination at a redistribution fee of 10s. 6d., accompanied by payment for Special Subjects papers received at the rate of 1s. each. They are then entitled to the full number of papers on Special Subjects in the new course, but in other subjects resume work at the point where they left off. These fees are not in any sense a fine, but simply compensation for the extra trouble of registration, and for the longer period a set of papers is being used. The Registrar will send the required Schedule on application. Applications for redistribution cannot be entertained after the date of the Examination for which a student was working has passed.

REGISTER NUMBER.—A Register Number is given to a Student on admission and must be used whenever writing to the College; otherwise, as reference cannot readily be made, the answer is often delayed. Students are warned not to mistake the numbers on the sets of lessons which have been assigned them, nor on the receipt for fees for their register number. Should a registered student subsequently take up another subject for the same Examination, another number will be given, which should be used in all communications relating to that subject. Special attention is requested to this important regulation.

RETURN OF PAPERS.—The whole working of the Forwarding Office is dependent upon attention to the rule. All papers must be returned within three weeks of receipt, unless arrangements have been made to "retain." Your set of papers is intended for another student in a later section, and, unless promptly returned, another set has hurriedly to be made up for him, which involves much needless trouble, and often a reprinting of some of the papers.

Preserve your papers (Notes, Tests, and Solutions) carefully, and return with as few folds as possible, entirely covered and well protected by a broad wrapper for transmission by post. Address them to the Forwarding Clerk, Burlington House, Cambridge. Name, Address, and Register Number must either be written on a sheet of paper, placed at the top of the returned papers, or put on the front of the wrapper.

Cont'd
isigela?
isigela
so ku Hlabo

11.1.03

Student Papers Notebook (small) - P. 10
File 60 60/12/1-6 (1)

I went off with Inbithwana to
the Owabe tribe. I also abused
- was not taken in Dodeini. So
he was kept Enkufabaneni.
Did not stay much Kwa Owabe.
Si ngge kyalame ne
Kuntungwana & li nom tonjwana
beke jezulu - this was said by
boys Ekwaliseni - when they
killed izinkomo zake ze bumba
ngo ku zi ngatela ngezi
nyawo.

I spoke to M. about all this
ku. sa nge ncehile. They
want to beat me. Sent me
to my grandmothers, kwa
intetwa. He was accordingly
taken there to Mgombolo
by Inbithwana. Muthli was
to all this, he approved the
hiding the boy. Entombi yakwa

Qwaffe yalwa intombi ya
kwa mtetwa. Send me to my
Koko - great grandmother.

He was a young man when he got
to Ingombedos. Muthi of course
did not appear much in all this
affair. He was anxious I should
not die. I was with him in
Zakent. This is why he had such an
interest in the matter. He filled
uhlobo leza kuba. Was afraid
of them killing him.

Lived a long time at Inlet
became unsiywa, fought
in the impi.

The umqos again arose that
a child of S. was Intetwa -
S. said I will go to Goniisa.
Ezezi blonzela - look about
for something lost on his own

account. amacasi spread on
foot of my gabela and

~~change of date & writing up~~

to dress yourselves up well -
& come in after the night to see
the ukosi.
Ezi siywa
Come if Koteme

isitunzi sa me ngama
~~ungaba sa father's~~
ungazi boni inkomo
yo hlobo pakati kwezi
inkomo lezi na?

S. pointed T. out. but he
did so overwhelmed with fear.

I agree with Muzij's version.
I do not remember all my father's
stories.

N. approves Muzij's version -
ast to S. being sent for - on the ground
that the object of getting him down was to

say that I was being brought back -
Muyi cannot make out how I, Ezingana
Inkanda & others were always called them
regiment.

M. says he is certain Ts was born
Elangeni where his nkaba was cut.

When ~~the~~ Tshaka was going to the
Mntetwa he came to the Amacube
the King there paid him *standa*
& said "Uyo busa, uyo ba
nikosi, hamba". I think
therefore T. was coming straight
from Zululand.

Muyi says Ts birth took place
kwa Nobamba -

Magogwana - Nyokana ka
Benyayo; Jantsi, Matshili
Sironga (blind); Makabeni -

Zibongi were great authorities
on history.

*Eno mban
angahl
kwarzi.
caya*

Malandela was the father both of
Zulu and ~~Malandela~~ Owabe.
ie Zulu & Owabe tribes.

Owabe came before Zulu did
ie into Zululand.

Mtethwa came before Owabe -
Owabe *abantu* & *Mntetwa* -

The Owabe people do not
call themselves *owabe* but
that name is ours alone.

Thus it seems they came first
into Zululand.

Everyone spoke at first ^{zive} all
had *amatosana* -

Musi & Mamfongonyana *aba*
kwa Owabe - chiefs.

Meseni & Siziba. *zizumo* (dead)

iqungo - *inhlwana*
yam-sikh *yo ku neindala*
yo ku tshelaga inkosi

La kad' phli mite, Kutiwa
U yim wena ra, u yi sihubane
se mite ye nkosi, ka u luto
ku ba ntab' enkosi, ba
nge kuseme nawo ngole
u ngo was' emsigini.

This is looked on as umtan
enkosi.

Mamfongomana (aka Godde
is the real head of the Ovambo
people.

78-1-03 per Doutkumana

isidhlihdli = an overgrown area, with
trees, ^{e.g.} in which kings have been
buried, & never burnt.

If a buck ran into the isidhlihdli or nkosi
it was not chased or hunted there - it was
sanctuary. The same applied to men running
here for refuge e.g. when Undi (Zulwana) fought
Ngobwakosi & Uve, the latter regiment, (which

was uhlangothi & was in the habit of leading or
in the van of Ngobamakosi), approached the spot where
Impandis grave & isidhlihdli were and were not
pursued further.

And where Mtabazi was hunted - passsi
kwa Esigkazi (Impandis kraal) - people
might also fly for refuge. In the case of
a king giving the order that any man was to be
killed and this man escaping into the king's
graveyard he would not be followed up but he
was told to return to his home & not be molested
further. Nor would the king give ^{a further} order that
he was to be pursued & killed. It was
moreover an understood thing that the king's
order applied only to that day or occasion on
which it was given. If the subject of it succeeded
in eluding his pursuers, even though he hid him-
self in some forest or hills he would not be
further followed up but allowed to return to
his kraal. The king would direct him to return &
the man would himself get a beast and with it his
person & tender his thanks to the king.

11.1.1903

(pub. 1) Chorran

plus great Mhuya, Ndukwana

70/48-53.

Ishaka; birth, expulsion and wanderings, residence among Mtetwa tribe and visit of Senzangakona to Dingiswayo, king of that tribe.

Par Ndhlovu (chief), Mruyi (his elder brother) ^{and} Ndukwana being present, on 11. 1. 03.

Ndhlovu speaks: The following narrative was related to me by my father Timuni. Senzangakona was ^{heavily} accused with others ^{by} ~~izi~~ ^{the} ~~klanteni~~ ^{klanteni}. One day one of the boys with him discovered a spot ^{at} which people had been sitting, for dishes and vessels were seen there and the place smelt of amaka (scent). It was decided the spot should be watched to see who frequented it. Nandi came to it with 2 men & some other girls, and were observed by Senzangakona's party. No sooner did this occur than the men went off, and the girls were questioned as to where they had come from and why they were there. After this, Senzangakona sent and asked Nandi to come to him.

Before going further, I ^{space} may as well describe the position of Nobamba and the district from which Nandi came. Ndukwana & Mnkando are my informants. The great kraal Nobamba lay close to the White Umfolozi on the South bank, several miles from the ^{public} S. A. R. Customs House at foot of the Entonjaneni range where the ^{and well above the waggon} road descends, that is the well-known Makozini district where Nobamba, Sixebe and Dakuza kraals were, & where a number of the older kings ^{are} buried. The head of the Langeni people, from which Nandi came, was Mgabi; this man is buried on ^{the} hills overlooking & near the Mhlaturu close to where Mr. Harry Osborn's house is.

To resume: Nandi proceeded with the girls to where Senzangakona was. The boys ^{stood in a line} ~~stood~~ ^{and} Senzangakona among them. Nandi was then addressed as follows: "Indicate to us the one you have come to see". Without delay she pointed out Senzangakona. "But why do you come and gaze at him? Because I love him." After this, Nandi was conducted to Senzangakona's ^{hut} ~~ilawu~~ whilst the other boys took off ^{from} the remaining girls to their own ^{own} ~~amatawu~~ ^{amatawu}. Nandi was the daughter of Mbraki ^{of the} ~~was~~ ^{people} Langeni. Makedama was the son of Mbraki. Every day the girls came to the place they brought beer with them, and Senzangakona ^(hlobongale) there. As a result of this contact, Nandi became enceinte (tola inlandwane). She returned to

her home. "What is the matter with her?" people said. "Oh, she has itshati
ie. what would now be called ikambi. Her breasts became darker at
the nipples. On being questioned as to her state, the girl replied, "I
do not know, but the man I love is Senzangakona." This she said to
the ^{me}amadoda. Men were then dispatched to Senzangakona. They came
to Muthli as bring the great man in charge of Senzangakona. They
stated to him what Nandi had said about liking his protegee. Muthli
answered, "Well, I'll question the boys about it." He then called Senza-
ngakona and said, "These men say the girl Nandi has itshati (ikambi),
do you like her?" He replied, "Yes, we do ^{like each other?} tandana". Muthli, however,
did not go so far as to say he had caused her to become pregnant, but
told him only that she was ill and not to expect her to visit him
again. In those early days kings were not permitted to have children
(illegitimate). Senzangakona then went away. Muthli then addressed
the messengers thus: "You men of the Langeni tribe, whatever that
^{child of yours} (mkonto wetu) may turn out to be, ^{look after it for us} anosi tokela (= anosi bekela)
whether it be a girl or a boy. If she gives birth to a child, it should
not be suckled (neela) by the mother but by its grandmother." The men
left. Muthli now said to Senzangakona, "The men have merely come
to say Nandi has ikambi. I directed them to treat and doctor her, and
so you must not be alarmed or disappointed if you find her discontinued
to visit you." In course of time the girl brought forth a child. It was
a boy, ^{and this boy was named Isihaka.} Muthli was notified of the fact. Muthli kept this information
to himself and did not apprise Senzangakona thereof. All the latter
thought was that the girl was still ill. Senzangakona's mother ^{made} pots
intambo and sent it to measure, from time to time, the ^{size} of
the infant's waist. After a time, Senzangakona's mother (own) reported
that she was ill. She summoned doctors who ^{cooked} pekela'd her ^{pots} (izimbiza)
^{of medicine for} zomzim' omubi. A large ^{mat} cansi, was made of nduli or ikwani or
ibuma (probably the latter), was set up, with the ^{pots} izimbiza hidden
behind it at the back of the hut, and she took ^{was} wa rongelwa nge
cansi le buma so as not to be seen by persons entering the hut.
Having made these preparations, the little boy Isihaka was brought to
her to look at. The woman examined it and, in the day time, hid it
behind the ^{mat} and among the izimbiza. People began to fancy

there was something amiss in the woman's hut, and acquainted Senzangakona with their belief. Ndhlova does not recollect to what tribe the people who told this tale belonged. Jama at this time was dead; he died whilst Senzangakona was still a child. Senzangakona, being an ^(young man) ~~insizwa~~ was living at another kraal. ~~Se be m nukeisa pengati ngo kwoake~~ (the tell-tales made out as if the child in his mother's hut was his own). "Where can I have got it from?" ~~he~~ ^{he} asked. Mudhli heard of this report; he instantly rewita's (snatched) the child and had it taken away to its mother's home. An attack was made on his mother's kraal by Senzangakona's direction, when the inmates thereof were put to death. Senzangakona's sister remonstrated, ^{and} asked on what grounds they were being put to death. "Kipa toko oku ^(the mats) ~~re ma causini~~" she said, for she had ~~been~~ ^{been} ~~heard~~ ^{heard} why they were being killed. The ~~indoda kazi~~ ^{sister} said, "Kill me if you kill her," meaning Senzangakona's mother. The party became afraid for there was no order with regard to killing the girl. She continued, "Ahalani kona lap' emnyango kuzo kuzo ni ze ni m kipe". They acted accordingly. They waited till the following day. The girl then said, "Go in and ^{take} ~~kipe~~ him". They thereupon entered and, tearing aside the ^(mats) amacansi exclaimed, "Ha! kanti kako!" ^(sister) ~~Izizimi~~ were then sent to Senzangakona to ask "what harm this kraal had ~~done~~ ^{done} to be treated in this manner." Senzangakona replied, "But where is that which they said was there?" This incident greatly annoyed the king. He thereupon sent an armed body of men (impis) to kill off the kraals of those who had made this false report, and added that even their dogs are to be killed.

After these events So ku hlalwa, ku buswa.

Senzangakona's mother gave Ishaka his name, I think, but I do not know who actually gave it. Nandi's or Senzangakona's mother must have done so, but, however given, it found its origin out of the (itshati) referred to. It may be added that the word (itshati) is a word used by women, out of respect ^(hlonipha) for the commoner (ikambi). It is possible ^(that) Mudhli might have given Ishaka his name.

Ishaka now returned ^(to) ~~efangeni~~ ^{went} into boyhood, and ^(healed with) ~~atusa's~~. Senzangakona was now permitted to marry. Nandi was sent for, and was duly married to the young king. Nandi, however, left Ishaka

at her own home, for she had been directed not to ^{recall} ~~reelisa~~ it and only her mother was to do so. I have not heard if Nandi had another child by Senzangakona. When Nandi married Senzangakona, Tshaka was a little boy, perhaps ^{herding} alusaini. Nandi then took up her abode at Senzangakona's kraal. She was lobola's. Only Mudhli knew of the existence of Tshaka. Senzangakona married various women, being ^{belonging to} an inkosi. After some time, a further rumour arose about Tshaka. The informants said, "The fault we have to find is among the ifangeni people." The responsible men at Senzangakona's kraal urged that steps should be taken to ascertain if there was anything ^{at the kraal} ifangeni. Acting on ^{this} advice, the king ^{brave lot and with} veza izinkomo to enda and under the pretext of paying Nandi's lobola, the messengers might be enabled to find something out about Tshaka. It would appear ^{as} if this later report was due to a quarrel which took place between Tshaka and the boys who were his associates ^{among the} ifangeni. What happened was this: Tshaka ^{quarrelled} zabanad with Makedama ka Mbeki; they had a dispute about stones in the field (ephle). Makedama said, "el' iMungwana li ya ngeyisa - li gok' izinkomo zami (i.e. hlab' izinkomo a zi landayo). Makedama killed Tshaka's cattle as represented by the stones they were at the time playing with. Nandi at this time was still kwa Zulu i.e. at Senzangakona's kraal.

The messengers sent by Senzangakona were to take cattle and observe the boys who herded the cattle belonging to the head of the ifangeni people. Spies (izinsaba) were taken and put on to watch. Having got to know what was brewing, Tshaka's grandmother called Mbikwana and said to him, "When the cattle come back, you proceed under cover of the dust, which will as usual be on as the cattle are running homewards, and get the boy away, bring him ~~to~~ into the kraal through an intaba (side-entrance). The other boys will then go on with the cattle." Mbikwana did as directed. There ^{were} ~~happened to be~~ many boys with the cattle. These were ^{on} out and all closely scrutinized by the spies. Ba ya ku yi bon' inswiba - inswiba ka yise ka yi pukile (they will observe the likeness; the stamp of his father's likeness will be on the boy). Tshaka's grandmother told Mbikwana to ^{take} stula

cooked meat for a journey

mkusa we nyama (isiboma = igata = isigaxa). He did so. Hamba u yo ngi tukusela wena loku, u ya funwa & go and hide this (lad) for me; they are searching for him. Mbikwana then took Ishaka off to his kraal. He ^{stated that he a white man's heart} gwaza' iduna eli mhlope for Ishaka lapa liyi ntera (^{now} when old enough to be ^{married} tera'd). The flesh was consumed at night. lenziw' igabe ^{of it was cooked} ie all pekwa'd the same night. Ishaka then took the meat and went off with Mbikwana to the Quabe tribe. Ishaka ^{was} alused there too; he was not introduced to the leading men of the place. He was kept ankwebaneni ^{with the inkwebani} ie with youths. He did not, however, ^{among the} stay long kwa Quabe. "Si nge kulume ne Mungwana & li no' mtonjwana o bheke pezulu" - this is a remark ^{made by the boys} ikwa aluseni ^{on the occasion when they 'killed' or destroyed} iyinkomo zake ze bumba, ngo ku zi nyatela nge zi nyawo.

Ishaka conferred with mudhli on all these unsatisfactory features. "Ku pa ngi nxibile," he said, "I cannot get rid of it; it still sticks to me. They want to beat me. Send me to my grandmother's, ^{among the} kwa Mtetwa." He was accordingly taken there by Mbikwana, and put under the charge of Mgomibolo. All that had happened to Ishaka ^{among the} Lanjeni and kwa Quabe was reported to mudhli, who approved the policy of hiding him. ^{The girl of the Quabe was born} Intombi ya kwa Quabe izakwa intombi ya kwa Mtetwa ^{ie}. Ishaka's great grandmother came from the Mtetwa. "Send me to my koko - great grandmother." Ishaka was a young man when he got to Mgomibolo's. Mudhli did not appear much in all these proceedings, and the ^{unseen} part he took was purposefully concealed. He was ^{that} anxious Ishaka should not die. I was ^{at his house} (indhlunkulu) yake and this is why he displayed so great an interest in the matter. He ^{concocted his plan relating} fikha'd uhlobo lwa kubo as he was afraid lest they should put the boy to death.

Ishaka ^{he} lived years among the Mtetwa tribe; ^{he} became an ineizwa and took an active part in Dingiswayo's military enterprises.

The rumour that ^{a child of} Senzangakona's was among the Mtetwa people came to be circulated. Senzangakona then said, "I will myself go down and gonisa - court girls, ape zi hlonzela - look

The last heads of the Qwabe tribe were Muzi and Mamfongonyana. Meseni and Siziba are the sons of the former, and Zidumo of the latter. (61)
 iqungo; indhluwana yo msizi, yo ku ncindela, & yo ku tshikaza inkosi la kad' idhl' imiti; kutiwa "U yini wena na, u yi sikubana se miti ye nkosi, ka u luto ku ba nta b' enkosi, ba nge kulume nawe ngob' u ngo was' emsizini." (62)

But, for all that, such child is rightly regarded as umtan' enkosi.

Mamfongonyana ka Godide is the real head of the Qwabe people.

Monday
 9.2.03.
 2 Norfolk Villas, Durban.
 Note. After having to send Ndukwana to Stanger and Mapumulo for him, Jantshi ka Nongila arrived today about 2.40 P.M. He arrived with his son. Mbovu, a man (Koluva) from Amanzimtoti, also came to see me.

Jantshi and Ndukwana present (8.2.03), Jantshi speaks: - I was born at eMvezane in Zululand and am of the same age as the Kandempemvu regiment. My father's name was Nongila who was an inhloli (spy) under Senzangakona, Shaka, Dingana and Mpande. He crossed over into Natal in Mpande's reign being then tired of the duties of a spy. I of course knew him well for he only died when Cetshwayo was living at eShowe after his return from England. Part of the Zibongo I will presently recite I learnt from him as well as other historical facts.

Dingiswayo's father was Jobe and Jobe's father was Kali. I cannot go beyond this.

Among Dingiswayo's sons were Mngoye, Mngcobo, Cakijana. Ndukwana added the latter two. He also said Schwetshata was son of Mpandeya ka Mbiya ka Tshangana.

According to what has been told me u'Bekapezulu was the first, this man had a son Mntungwa whilst Mntungwa's son was uNtja. Now it so happened that the aba kwa Lembe fought with uNtja and gave him the ^{of opprobrious} name ufufenulwenja. uNtja had a son Malandela whilst Malandela had two sons called Zulu and Qwabe. The two last formed the heads of separate branches. Zulu had three sons Punga, Mageba and Ndaba who stood in the

[14]

per young man who accompanied Balani + Ntoboni 22-3-03

Sigananda - zalwad kwa magwaza
dead to ~~eyes~~ -

was old woman grandmother told me
Zulu came from top of Urudi + ehlan

amansawa (first) as Zulu

- emtonjemi we ^{is near the street} ncome - enhlaza
- ^{later great to people} dolo - some abutakid emhlatuze
ie abanguni.

lubolulwenja is an izitakazelo

Talk with Ndutwana - 30-3-03

Mtobwa.

wen o wasenzi ganwini

wen o wasobakabakemi = of the pans or lakes

Pansi ku ka Barwana ^(hill) there is a grove of trees
spoken of as usttuli, utuli being Mgushlanas
ancestor. Mgushlana was head over that section

of the Mtobwa which left the coast and went north
to where the Impangiso kraal was built, because
they panicked and komped on the occasion of Shaka
attacking Zwide. Mgushlanas father was

king or guma
top of the
range.

nti umashwi llingizati Tuli

[Faint, mostly illegible handwritten notes in the right margin, possibly bleed-through from the reverse side of the page.]

[MAGIDI 60/21/8 + 7.5.1903]

[8]

Uini, and ibungun

he say a Zibizendhlela is with the Europeans.

Zulu ka Rogandayp egid rezinkona
He was afraid of being accused of
having tukusad Zibizendhlela.
He egid in Dingana's time.

Nzwakela was killed by Dingana
for having fihlaid a Zibizendhlela.

Isilungu si ka Febana - Farewell.

ange pate mputu mbili - cannot
serve two masters - as said by
Mudhli to Dingiwayo when directed
to protect Ishaka as against

Senzangakona
Nandi was killed by Ishaka himself
as she fihlaid umuntu ekulelwazi
(Emiti). The girl was datshulwad.

60/21/9

[9]

9-5-03
Kobus

Ndlovu.

we cannot do all the work required
of us.

we used to put out rept's

isicubu, ^{we have no} kasi nasicubu = no plot
of land.

grievances; ^{no land;}

pay taxes for nothing;

pay taxes for dogs;

dig roads.

pepetela
dudwe
ubukosi

^{log} Tununu ka Najiya

of Mkulutshana rept
was ^{an} incekuji in Dingana's day (65)

uThlani olu bamba abalandolezi - ^{abesuthe his own smell}
 uMazala nge zinja, kand' u ba y' ebantwini
 A ba m uzwi' ukunika, uThlangubo
 uNomubu we zintenjane - ^{izimpahle}
 Inkom' i ya pi ka Sodidi? ^{ke was induna}
 uMmango o no bumbo, ^{izibongo sika}
 Ngi mbi' o mampobe ^(a) no zongant' ^(b) ^{visenkule}
 ka ngimbanga ngibilalekile. ^{= Mawlo}
 La p' e galis' ukugqiza, bali Dyapi na?
 Dyapi na?

ie abantu
 abaningi
 ba umubu

all these
 dug up +
 the roots
 eaten

(a) both these are rather like batata - some of the roots
 are 1/2 in. thick, 8 in. long - later raw -

- izimongwe amatshwichi
- izintondo ungalaguba
- amafonsi

when my father was gwarzid kwe ya kwa Sifkanyana
 (inipi), they (his reft) left him behind. He then took
 to digging up the roots mentioned.

ukubulawa ku ka Dhlatiya

uThlatiya kwa ku umuntu, kwatwa ~~umuntu~~
 untakati. Kwa pakwa inipi ya yo m belala.
 Obaba ba be se zinsizwa be nga bafana -
 ukugalisa kwabo ukuhlalana. uThlatiya
 It was the first experience of fighting

Kwa ku umuntu wa kwa Zulu; kunge yena wo
 ku galwa. Kwa ku umuntu nje, e iduna. (67)
 Da m bulali' e Dhlatiya, ba m belala ngo
 ku m vimbela; ba be pakwa oNzobo no
 Nhlala. oNzobo no Nhlala kwa ku nga
 mapini ka mohlaka, ku Tshaka. (68)

uSiguwe bana ka mudhli

uSugu ba buy' u Fasimba (a) was induna entaba
 uMnumrani' o go hlabanelazo
 o hlabanel' izingikfi zombili
 uMoya i nqile amzansi, izingikfi - 8 ngikfi
 Ngaze nga pembanga ndawo zimbe = amaze, ka
 uNzidamo, wa otimuni, mudhli
 uSilatsha, sa nga venovane wa kubu
 ka Mipo-
 poma - yena
 npos' enkulu
 ku mudhli
 o baba
 ba ikohl' o
 key'
 uMipopoma

These roots resemble
 mudhli as seen
 by M. M. M.
 about 1902

ukuponseka
 = ziteni
 ku bafu, a be se
 gwarz' izindawo
 zomke
 latsha = ukutshatshi
 ukufingelela, ukuponseka
 pakali ku bafu.

flits about
 this way & that

(a) gugu = to turn, is term of that
 part of his own reft repulsed by the enemy, to
 come & join him, he having in the meantime
 stuck to the enemy & pressing home attack.

translate: The Turner, and the Fasimba came
 back to him. The Fasimba was his own reft
 He being induna.

Good informant

age of mbomambi 28

u ya
khalupaka
family

okoro ka
Tumtini
of about mbomambi
rest - 6 age

Silongitsha ka Masala, wa kwa Koga

Maribuko ka Mapanga ka Mudhli

(an unvaled) about age of Nokenke rest.

Shelatter is a good (imbongi). Lives under chief Mtonga

Kuti sip' unwele! = ie bring on angry feelings, as if want

to go off & fight for your king.

Mangindi wa kwa ibiya. ch. ndoda ka Nomsine

Kwana. Possibly a good (imbongi) for his father

was Tumini's father (imbongi) & an excellent one.

Search for him through Mngani Court Police.

Lives Panzi kwa mkambali is short, not old.

would be about 70 yrs of age

Angi ku vami ukuti uTshaka yingane waye

zi faki' zizibondeni ka ku kwake. Eya kiti.

lez' yingane o kwatwa wa zi faki' zizibondeni.

Da be in gumbela. Umuntu o wa ye faka

bez' ngane u Mkitika ka Mudhli (okany

nab' o Tumini), uyise u Magunura ka

Jama.

[Mkitika ka Magunura ka Jama?]

15
Ka Nzwakale
Kutshwaya wa kwa Dube - wa ye umgane
ka Tshaka.

uTshaka wa ke wati a ku datshulwe, a

bonelapa ku hlala kon' ingane. Bapu

dbul' umuntu, ya pum' ingane, kwa

bonakal' ukut' usisi ke wamenipakati

wa f' unina. Wa kuzo ku ukatshwaya

ka nzwakale wa kwa Dube. Wa yebul' wati uk:

wo, Nkosi, kubi loku. Kuhle umuntu

a belaw' a fe, a nga datshulwa kubi'

ukuhlinz' umuntu njing' enkomo. Into

zihle, mangsea onile, (i nga mbulel'

inkosi) a dhlwe intaba, a duke nezwe

umsebenzi uTshaka o waye wa

tanda ka kulu, uku pak' impi njalo,

a bantu ba nga hlali. A bantu ba nga

pumuli.

u landulelani int' ikona? (The snuff incident)

Why do you deny having what, in fact, you have

akuzalwa ku ka Tshaka

done wrong
mangxatshani

ikona ku phala
kona take
is the outline of

See Yenzisi
version of
Tshaka's birth
attached, p. 17

uTshaka, ukuzalwa kwake, ku suk' indoda
yap' ispaneni, ka mbongi, wa Nfuga
u mbongi wa tum' indoda ne noizwa,

ENGUGA 78

= size of
ole
go beyond
hand

indoda itwalelwe umfana. Manje ke
 ba fanyana u Senzangakona a-lusile, &
 sephile, & kwaluseni; & na befani abaningi;
 Be hlala' amietole, a zi nhlabisam timbay
 a zi mpondo zi-banyana-zi-sale. U Senza-
 ngakona wa/bap'inyama labo bantw hap
 sefungeni. Da hlala ba ya lapa/be tunywe
 kona inkosi ya kubo, ukuba ba-dhl'
 inyama. Da se be buya futu ngakona,
 esihlahleni futu, se be buye bepiw'
 inyama futu. Da se be hamba ke be
 y'ekaya. Se/be/fik' ekaya ke, se/be
 xox' indaba amantombazane, ku
 Nandi. Se be ti: "Si fanyan' izinyane le
 sib, la-lusile. Se li sip'inyama. Wati
 ke ubani na? Waye se-ti-ke, u Senza
 ngakona. Ipi ti intombazane? U ya jabul'
 o ka mboni". Ipi ti & indoda: "ngi nga
 o ku kombisa". E seti-ke u Nandi: "Hamba
 ke u yo ngi kombisa. E se but' ana
 ntombazan' a kubo, & ba uaningi.
 E se hamba naz' indoda le ne
 nsizeva, no mfana wakhe (indoda), o

ntwaleleyo. Se be ya ba ^{baye} ba fike
 kona, ku b' abafana. ~~Be fike~~ Ba
 fike ba hlal' ecaleni kwa leso sehlahla
 sabo, lab'aba lusile. Da ba/buka nga-
 nhlanye, bona be nga/ba/boni; Kanti
 izintombi zi yaba bona zana. Se be
 hlala ke abafana nga/wah lamu u,
 be tshayana. I si m kombisa ke,
 indoda, i m kombisa, iti: "Ngangu-
 ya-ke uqobo lwake u Senzangakona".
 Se be hlala nje ke. [Zonk' izintombi be
 de be ya/kona, aman'tombazane la naz'
 indoda. Se kut seki' izintombi ke, zi
 hamba/zi ya nga kubo' amantombazane
 Se be ti: ku/bafana: "Hambani ni'
 yo zezela", kutsho lab' abafana ba
 ka ^{Se be fanyana izike ndhla zo}
 ku hlala. De bon' amantombi' inyama
 no tshwala. Se be bon' ukuti: "Hau! Ku
 kon' o ku hlala lapa! Kanti iz' izin-
 tombi! Ka zi seko, se zi fodukile."
 Da se be fika betsho lapa be ti:
 "All! Kanti se hlezi lapa nje, ku
 kon' abantu aba hlezi lapa; &
 be se siti sehlezi, be zi buke,

nganhleng. Dato: "Hau! Abant'aba-
 njani na?" Dato: abafana: "Ka nuk'
 umutwa (amaka la; ogolewa izintombi)
 Dato: "A sitshongo ukuti nga amadoda,
 site nga izintombi; ngoba ka nuk'umutwa,
 sibona na matambo, konke nje. Dzi-
 kundhla/se/zaba/mhlope, pansi
 kwo muti. Da se be goduka ke o serya-
 bey' akaza, bey' lala. Se be buya ke
 kusasa, beza kon' esihlahleni sabo.
 Se be fika; ne izintombi lezi a zi fihle.
 Da se beti: "Uke ni yo bona". Da se be
 hambake abafana abanye na laba
 ababe bonile, ba babane. Da se
 be zi fanyan' izintombi. Da se beti: uba
 ba fike, i si suk' indoda ne nziywa
 no rufana, se be goduka ke labo. Se
 zi hlal' izintombi. Se be buya lab'aba
 be tanziwe. Se beya kuy' u serya.
 Se be fike be mtshela, beti: "zi fihle
 kuzo; zi ning' izintombi, be zi hamba
 na leya ndoda e sazi ip' inyama
 Dzi hambile". Iseti ke: "Hambani ni
 yo sazi biza. Se be zi biza ke

Seziyake. Se zi fika ke kubo. Se be beza
 ukuti: "Ni yaki na?" Dato: "Si zo bon' izinyane
 le nkosi". Dato: "U bani na?" "U lsenyogakona
 "Ni ya mazi in na?" Dato: "Si ya m bona,
 kodwa, si m' bakela kude". Dato: "U zo bonwa
 ubani na?" Dato ke: "Nangu!" Dato: "Ni nga
 baki na?" Dato: "Si nga ba se Nguja, zangeni."
 Ni nga ba ka bant' e Nguja na?" "Si nga ba
 ka mbengi, we Nguja". "U uban' intombi
 ka mbengi e zo bon' u s. na?" Dato ke:
 "Ukandi". Dato: "U zo m bon' ukwenzani?
 Uli, Ngi zo m bona ukuba ngi mtanda.
 Dato: "U inupi ke e na?" Dato se be hleleka
 -k' abafana, beti: "xe bw!" Dato: "M
 Kombe!" Ya i si m kom baka isiti: "Nangu."
 Dato beti: "U mtandela ukuba weenzi
 ngaz na? wati: "Ngi mtandela ukulela
 ngi some naye, ku be isi se be sami. [X]
 se suka ke ukandi etab' u sa nge ngalo,
 e se sey' edh langaleni lake la e de m bon'
 e ngera kona. E se ngera, se kwe
 ndh lalawa izicepu, ze neema ne nduli,
 na ma ce banyo kwa lukwayo. Se be hlala
 ke izinyawo lezi zonke se zi tatawa
 izintombi e zi zi tandazo nazo.

~~u~~ u Nandi u ~~ang~~ se ngena ne zigigila
 zake ~~zi~~ ~~zi~~ & zi m tandayo, nay'
 a zi tandayo, & zi mpeke l'ukudhl'
 skaya, zi ngen' & dhlangualemi li ka
 S. So ku hlal'wa ke, kud hliw' utshwata
 ne nyama. So ku tshon' ilanga se
 ke buya. Intombi (uNandi) i siti' a ku
 hlal' abafan' abafane lap' edhlanga
 leni a kade be h lezi kulo, ba nga fo diki'
 utsho abafana ~~u~~ ba ka senzangakoni
 Uti ma lende le l' idhlangala, ba la le kona
 Baba nikh' izipuke zo ku sala be lala.
 Da ba nika no kudhla. Se zi poduka
 ke izintombi: ~~ze buya~~. U set' uNandi
 a zi hambe zi mb' (incombo), zi yifak'
 smanzini. In doda le ke, i si yate'
 yak' indhlu skaya, ya i si yaluk'
 isicaba, i si gaula konke ne mtoha ^{R.AFTER}
 i si gada konke ikuti nga. U se buy'
 uNandi & fik' skaya. U seti indoda
 lep' kusasa, ayi fun' abantu, ziu-
 siywa, zi yi twabe, zi yise kona lap'
 & sihlak leni, Amantambazano a
 twab' izchlandhla & kade zalukwa

zonk' i yinduku, zo ku fulel' indh lu
 Se beyi twala, ba ze bazi fitise kona.
 Se be tata loli' upahla, se lu sasa.
 So ku bteleo 'indhlu, imbiw' unse le
 wayo, i si fakwa. I si gqitshwa,
 i si ~~ph~~ paplewa. I si fulelewa
 ke, nga lolu ku seku & fike
 ngalo. I si fulelewa ipela, i si
 gundaywa se ~~se~~ be lala kona ke
 abafana labo ke. zo ku lungiswa
 lolu upahla, & be ku ngo lu ka senz.
 kuzala ~~se~~ i si yenziwa ukub'
 i bemble, ku be nge zo ku pek'
 nyama yake, zo ku fakwe ne zitoha
 zo ~~tel~~ utshwata ^{ke} & ku pekwe no
 kudhla ^{Kona} yen' a be h lezi. lap' indhlini
 yake. Manje - ke u se ~~hlal~~ hlobonga ke u
 ne ntombi yake. Se ku zo mil' isisu ke. I si
 mata, I si mit' utshaka. Se be yi bonakubo
 ukuti: "Hau! um ntoan' ase njani?" "Nati: Hau!
 u ne tshati", ~~ke~~ (igamu le Kambi) zini intomba
 zuna & ngaze ya geza na? Inbala ka
 i ne tshati nje na?" Da ke buka loko.
 A gam' amabele, a fueseka, a ba nyama
 (see what Bryant has about Kambi + iBungane) 79

Kwa bonokal' ukuti a ku il' itshati,
 a miti. Manje. ke se be/buza kuye,
 beti: "Hau! Loku kwenzuwa ini na?
 Loku a ku yil' itshati na? Loku a-
 muntu na?" Wati: "Ka ngazi, ngoba
 ngi soma no Senzangakona". Dase beti:
 "Yeboke ntombi ke, si se zo ke si ye
 kubo, si yo ku buza ukuti. lo ku
 ha/ya kwazi na? Da se be/za ke
 kiti kua No dunga, kubo ka
 Senzangakona. Se funyan' uMudhli,
 a be ze kuya, a ba zo buza loku
 uMudhli waye seti: "ini na? ni
 pumapi, bafu base langeni na?"
 Dase beti: "Si ze kona lapa" wati:
 "Ni ze nani na?" Dasi: "Si ze nge
 ntombi yama. Wati: "ntombi yam
 i nani na?" Dasi: "De seti ine
 tshati kanti ine sisu. I si komba
 kona laps' shaya. Wati ke: "Hau!
 I u komba bani na?" Dasi: "I
 komb' u Senz." Ite wati: "Ite wenzani
 na?" Dase beti bona; Ite u hlobonga
 naye. uMudhli waye se m

Le to Zulu
tribe

tshati

biz' u Senzangakona. I seza. I seti. il ya
 bazi lab' abantu na? Wati: "Da, ka ngi
 bazi" wati: "A ba se langeni." Akuko muntu
 wa se langeni o maziyo na? Wati: "Da!
 ngi ya waz' amantombazani a kona". Wati:
 "Wazi bani na?" Wati: "Ngaz' uMandi". Wati:
 "U Mazi l'api na?" Wati: "U ngi mazi
 lapa ngaluse la kona". Wati ke: "Yebo ke."
 Kulusa ne nzeni na, loku yena intomba
 zama na? Wati: "ngi mazi lapa. ngi hlala
 naye ngi soma naye". Waze seti: "Yebo ke
 ngi ye ze wa ke. Da zo bika yena ke" Dasi
 "ba zo ke tshati, u ngaz' u ye ngazi naye
 u ya gula. U kwelive itshati. Hau ba ke.
 De ngi ku bizila loko, ukuti ubuhlungu,
 u ya gula, u ne tshati. U se suk' u Senz
 ze hambela ke. U set' ukub' ahambe ke
 u se kuluma na ba se langeni, la madada,
 a be zo bika. So ku kulum' uMudhl' uti:
 "O! madada, ku lel' izwi e ni ke letileyo
 ke, a no si tokela, ni si bonisele
 kahle, lowo mkonto wa kiti. Ngi nga
 jabala, u mangisa ku ngaba isenjani.
 Ni ngo ku kulumi futi kwabany' abantu

ti-ke unina ka Senzangakona a ~~ku~~
~~pindele~~ u se sipul' u mizi, u se
 u wupota & wenz' intambo. U seti
 a ku pindele u yo ngi bincis' o ~~ku~~
 kalweni nga le ntambo, uti u nga
 la iges bona la & kaule kona, u
 tekelez' ifindo. ~~u~~ u buy' u yi let'
 esifubeni na kon' ubon' u ba ngako
 bayo, u tekelez' ifindo; u buye u
 yimisi naye, u bona la & kaule
 kona, u tekelez' ifindo. U bus'u
 buya nayo ke u zo ngi kombisa
 wa hambake. wa kuvonza loko.
 wa buya nayo ke. wa ku bona
 konke, ubungaka bake, ukuti
 deli ifindo, & la sokalo, deli
 elas' & sifubeni, deli & lo kubu
 smi, & li kaule & kanda, ubude
 bake bu ngake. U se jabula ke.
 U se hlala ke.

Se kuti ub' a hlaleke, ku hamb
 tsikati. U se m tuma fute uti
 ake uyo ngi bonela ukuti
 namuhla ungakona u. U

correct - uyo

rather vestel there

se hamb' & pindel' ego bona U se
 m funyan' & kulile, & se ngang' aba
 ntwan' abaseka yatabafana. U buya
 u se m tshelawukuti u ngang' u si
 banibani nangu! U seti Han!
 U nge ngi tumbile na? ngi ku
 bone nas' sbeuske na? U se
 t' u mudhli Qa! ku ngenziwe
 loko mame. "Po, ku ngenziwa
 njani mntanami na? Ngiz ngiz
 ngi ku bone kanjani na? Ati ke
 u mudhli, Qa! manie. Aku yeke
 ngiza ku cingel' icebo lo ku
 ku bona. Ahambake, ahlabake, a
 hlaleke. Abes se buy' et'
 unina, "U mntanami, wati u za u
 ngi cingel' icebo, a waz waz ngi
 cingela na? Inhlizigo kai sa
 humi. Waz seti u mudhli, Qa,
 manie, Jan' uya gula. Uti ku kenket
 amatambo, U se buyo fanu
 inyanga yo m zim' omubi. A
 ku pekil' izimbizo, ngob' uti
 uya gula. Kuvonzele ukuba

refers to Tshaka

= say Tana

Kenket

ngi ze ngi ku tatele - kodoke, ukuba
 ku nga se kura munt' on dala
 endhlini kwako, ngoba ku yobe
 so ku pekeo' izimbiza. Odala
 ke, se ku bikiwake loko, kutiwa
 i ya gul' inkosikazi. So ku lando,
 u inganga ke & ya upek' izimbiza.
 U setsh' emantombazani ke,
 ete a malukele icansi' eli kuluy
 le buma, & li ya u pit' izimbiza
 zo muti. U seti ke abafana jiba
 mfunel' izimbiza ezinklope zo
 gaganane o se lomile, kanye no
 mntomboti, enzel' ukuba apuz'
 umuti a kanyise ngaz' ebusuku.
 Se be kwenzake loko ke. & se
 mlandake umntwana lowo u mudhi
 & ee mfaka ngalapa, ngose muon
 kwe si kwabukwaba, a hlale
 kona ke. Ate & se zi bukelo
 yena yedwa njalo, nas' zuzini
 nas' busuku, u munt' on dala
 & nga sezi u kwen dhlini, ngoba
 kwe satshwa ukuti u ya kwon'

Sukuph
 shaba
 ku
 ndhlini
 sangaphakane
 hincinane

izimbiza ze uyanga. Se be buka bo
 babili nje no mudhi, yen' uTshaka
 use kona lap' skaya, u bonewa
 ibo bobali kupela. Sekuzwabalake
 nge ziny' izintu ukuti ke
 kon' oke tukeswe unyoko lapas,
 u tukes' impaka yake lap' skaya.
 U d' ezwa ke u mudhi, o waluse
 & mpaka, ukuti kabo! Se be ku
 neamile, se be ngi pamba, use
 tata nge febane & ya ku ku
 kipa, & ku kipa nge n tuba ebusuku.
 Se be tula - ke, se be lalel' igamu
 lo kuti o ku hlale, ni yo ku vimbizela,
 ni yo ke belala kanye nas'
 isalukhazana & si unamane.
 Ba se be bezwaki o mntkabayi,
 odadewabo, ukuti ku kona o
 ku tukeswe unyoko, neonyo
 enkosini ukuti ku kon' impak'
 & kona, & hlalisoa unyoko zonk'
 izintu. U se zo belawa.
 A se ya ke amantombazani ku
 nin' endhlini. E se hambitana

nebo abayo bulala. A suk' a vimb' emnyango. wa butan' udula kon' abusubi. wa hlala nje ^{ka' kah' indlela} pandhle kwaba bas' amaxoba onkilo, kwaze kwaza, amantombazana shlez' emnyango. A ye set' amantombazana ukuleka kuse, Puma mame! wa pum' uprin' endlelani Ba ngena, Bambul' icansi, bli & li rongileyo. amantombazana bati ~~At~~ li kipeni icansi kelo ni ze nay' impaka yenu, si yi bone nga mehlo. Unin' usemi namantombazana lapa ~~ngapandhle~~ egekene, emnyango. Ba ~~ba~~ li kip' icansi. Bati nize, amantombazana, a la mukel' icansi, a lendhlalapanisi. At ~~stani~~ impaka ka mame, ni yi zise lapa si yi bone. Bati a kuko luto. Bati kipan' amuti lowo. Ba wukipa. Bati ~~Ng~~ Ngermani, zinduna, ni yi kip' impaka ka mame, &

See important under hubu

Very important fact can be proved or disproved through the

ni zo mbulalela yona! Duti ka yi'ko. Ati amantombazana: ka yiko ngani na? Umame kant' ufelani na? A kala. A se nguzul' isilelo, & kala, & banga kuy' u mndwabo. Ati: u mndwabo u bulawa nje, wenzeni na? Da kala. Kant' akuko luto na? Da! Ati amantombazana: Siti abayi beke kona lap' smehleweni ako, impaka ka mame. Uti Kau! Kant' baya m zambe! umame na? Kupi loko zinduna? Induna, iti Ka kuko. Uti ke! bka kwe nziwa ini na? It' induna. U rumbu ka bejana! U na manga, u mfampeta nje ngo mlomo, akuko luto. Dti ke inkosi ke, kam bani ni zo bo bulala, bant' ngeto nenza, ni ze ni' gwat. Zinja za kona, ni tshaze ni gotala. A nga hlali no yedw' o wakona. Bati ~~ba~~ u senzengakona ukuleka nje-ke utshi' u muzi wos & ba. Zuluseni, kwa Mfampe ⁽⁸²⁾ Ibo

lab'abantwa ba bulawayo, ~~kuti~~
ngoba ibona a bati ku kon'impaka
khaya, be tsh'utshaka. Kwatiwa
na yo bulawa, ba fanzani 'e nga
seho, se be ni ~~ngidile~~ ~~se~~ se
pindel' & fanzeni.

egivile?

Se be bulawa ke bonke, be zotulwa.
Sekuti-ke lokae o ku hamba ku
sala, se ku yo ngena ko ka moka
bay' unuzi, ku tshiswa iyena,
loke oku ngobantu ba se ~~bagulu~~.

Sokutiwa
bapalile

Sini. Soku hlalwa ke -
Seku hlalwa, ku hlalwa ke, se
kut' emuva se li vel' igamu,
& se li ti A lok' okuwa bulawal'
unuzi, kukona! "Yebo na?
Kupi na?" "Wo! Kus' fanzeni."

Sokutiwa ke, "Ni nga kubona na?" Se betike
"Si ngaze si kohlwe umntwana wa kiti-
na?" Se ku tshaya izinkomo se kuyiwa
kon' fanzeni ku yo lotsholwa. Se be
piki' khaya lapi' fanzeni izinkomo
zalekile. Se be pika ne za kiti kwa
zulu, be zi tel' sibayeni, se zi gewal'

unuzi. Se ku yo ~~ku~~ kulek' izinduna
ukuba zi zo lobola, zi lande inkai-
kazi ya kito beyo, utandi. Se beti
a ba se fanzeni, Au! & Inqani lowo
& muntu, ^{le muntshi} se wafa na? Bati, a ba
Zulu -> Kiti a si m'azi! Nani nga si
tshel' ngani na? Bati a ba se fanzeni,
"ba ye ganile ini? pka sa ni bikela
kon' ukufala kwake, wafa ^{le Nandi} ^{ene tshel'is}
ba kito ke ba hlal' & sangweni, lah
loub' ibandhla, la kak' & sangweni,
ukupa be gapel' utshaka la izi-
nkomo se zi buya, beti - ba yo m
bona kufana, la se ku bon buy'
izinkomo. Kanti ke se mudhli u
seye wa si tshel' isalukazi & se
ngq' unakula (ozal' utandi)
ukuti. Kuziwe lapa nje ku zo
bonwa yen' utshaka. Isalukazi
se si biz' u Mbikwana
(umfowab' u Mbenge) was' fanzeni
wo ku zulu se siti ku ye, wo
Mbikwana! Hambayo ngitatel'
sudhle umntan' omntanani lowo

who died?
Tshel'is
le muntshi

u m hamba ngas' otubini lwe
 zi nkona, umkete ku bafana,
 uz' u zungena naye ingentuba.
 Abe se hamba k' umbikwana a
 be se ya o mtata ku bafana, kon'
 endhle. Ati a zi buye ke izinkomo,
 zenz' utuli. Abe se hamba naye
 ngas' otubini, la kungo sa bonakali.
 De ku hangeni utuli. az' ay' a ngene
 ku nina^{a zi} k^{etuli} e. ~~Abe m' tula~~ umkuse,
 isibona se nyama. & seti ku mbikwana
 hamba naye ke, umuse ku wame,
 kwa Dwabe. U se hamba naye ke, kona
 kusihlwa, & y' emzini wak' umbik-
 wana naye. & se fih' emgqoazel'
 iden' le ntena & li teniweyo, & liphlope,
 & li ndhleberibomoye. & se pekela kwa
 ke kon' & busukui. E se mtata ke &
 musa kwa Dwabe, & yo hlala naye
 kona, ku koko wake, o zal' unina ka
 Nandi. U se hlala ke kwa Dwabe.
 Se ku vuk' iniseba & li njeng' e
 li m' kips' & fangeni — ukukuleluma,
 ngob' & fangeni wa' cetshwa, ^{kwa} suk'

inthe am...

aba se fangeni, bez' kwa zulu, ba to
 bha o kwa bulawel' amuzi, kubona,
 ngoba ~~ko~~ wa ya lusile ne nkosana
 yas' fangeni, benz' izinkomo za
 mathe, izinkunzi za mathe, be
 zigata. E ka Tshak' ingal' ilukuni,
 i yi kipa inkunzi & petwe ilo,
 inkosana ka mbenzi, i yi xotsha.
 Da baye benz' em' inkunzi futi
 nge ling' ilanga, i binq' i xotsha.
 E ka Tshaka i na mandhla, az'
 ahluk' isandhla lo wa's' & fangeni.
 Se be burake be' Kau! Kazi zi
 xezeli ngani na, u Tshak' uya
 zi xezela? Abe seti isandhla
 si buklunge. Bati Senziwe
 em' ma? Ati Ngi hlutshukwe
 ukhaka 'Ngani na? Nge nkunzi
 yake ya mathe. De se be
 babaza, bet' Kau! Intwana
 yoku tukeswa, iz' ibulal'
 umntwana w' enkosi ya kiti
 na! A bulawe ~~ing~~ intungwana
 lo ku tukeswa? Kant' uyegwa

is whole talk takes place in his presence

stones

-ke uTshaka, uzwa ku lab'aba sengayo, be kulelwa loko. Yena akha yek' ~~uzwa~~ ukusez ^{a tulisi} a lalale. Ezwe, ~~aganda~~ ^{ukukuluma ba ku qcinela kery kwake}. De zi ku lab'aba. Kuti kuseza, zaluke, ba pindela kon'endhle, la ba lusilakona. Da fike ba zi gat' inkunzi. A be se yidedela nga mabom' utshaka zake. A ba se yi dothake lo inkosanyaso, isangeni. A be se tat' ithe, e ye bulal' inkunzi kaTshaka, e yi ~~se~~ gooba ngetshe isifa, u se yi ntshinga; u si buy' ibong' e yake. U se fun' eny' utshaka, koma lapa. I si bong' e sibayeni ekaTshaka. I si sukela ya o' isangeni, i sukela lapa, a Kubo, i zo kulelwa lap' shaya, ngoba i si bulal' eny' inkunzi kaTshaka. Se zi hlamba bezana, sezilwa. Utshak' use yidedela. U se zi tat' e yi gooba, itatw' ilomfana wa ~~se~~ Lange oke wa bulal' eny' u se buy' e yi gooba futi. U se yek' utshaka

uke yo fun' eny' inkunzi, u se ke e yi funa kusasa pela. U seti ka ukuba zi buy' ke inkunzi u se xoxa lo mfana wa se sangeni, e xoxela lab' abasengayo, ukutw' wo! Zi ye zati zi yalwa y' nga yahlul' ekaTshaka nge yakito, ngo se ngi tat' ithe ngi yi bulala. I si f' ite nge. Se be hleka ke lab' abasengayo, ba o' isangeni. u se lalal' utshaka lapa e kulelwa, e batshela aba Kubo. Se be hlekake, ub' eTshaka yahlalwa, yo bulawa, kwa funw' eny' yo bulawa. Se beti lab' abo e isangeni, Au zwa ke! Betsh' ko wa Kubo lo, onkunzi yahlul' ekaTshaka, abuy' a yo gooba ngetshe, a yi bulale. Se beti ke Ho! In tangwana, ~~u se~~ i li zo ba 'ilo inkunzana yalo, yahlul' inkunzi ya kati na? Baya hlekake e sibayeni. U lalale ke utshaka u se vukake e kuse niki, zo laka.

plan of
Kwena
of abalungwe

U se fun' syak' utshak' inkunzi u
 seyi tola. Isi bongu-ke igond'
 skaya, emizini wak' utshaka. Isi
 pama le ya se fangeni, e bulele
 i zinkunz' emibeli, i si z' skaya.
 Isi pama le ka tshaka, i pama le
 ngo pandhle, i yi klangabeza.
 Sezi klangabezana gde, e ka tshaka
 i si ba na mandhla. Isi gatsha, i
 pami sandhleni ka loya wa se fangeni
 i si ma fapaga. U seyi ~~kotsha~~
 cotsha, e buya nayo, eza uzi gata.
 U se si tambis' isandhl' utshaka, i si
 pami syak' igatsha. U se qijim' e
 yi tat' e yi gooba ngetshe, enz' ekuba
 ibulal' izinkunz' emintatu zi katshaka.
 Uta e sazi gooba, u way e se paki
 utshaka e dumel' umkonty e ya
 u swaz' yidhlezan' e hambayo ya
 kwabo! Ee! so buy' icala bay'
 e se skay' u ku mbengi. Iati "U bulel'
 inkomo ya kwetu!" wati "I bulewe u
 bani na?" wati "I bulewe utshaka"
 u beyi bulala kwenz' enjini na? De

kules' izinkunzi. "P! inkomo wa ze
 wayi bulalanga ni ra?" "U yi bulale
 ngoba i bi yalwe ne yake i ya hlule,
 a ngaz' a yi gooba ngetshe; loke,
 uti lapa e yake i xotsh' e ka
 tshaka, e be se yi gooba ngetsh'
 e ka tshaka - njalo." Uty' u mbengi,
 yena, "kaz' a ngayi goobani?" "Da,
 Abe seti 'kan' t' uyi qwaye kahle,"
 e tenzake ukub' utshak' a muke ke
 e fangeni, aye kwa Dwabe, la ke
 zalwa kona intamb' e ya fana ku mbengi,
 e ya kwa Dwabe ya zalwa e ya kwa
 mtetwa.

Kwa Dwabe ke, wona nge bumba
 ngezinkunzi ze bumba, ukub' ahlale
 kona, zi bunjwa utshaka, u bumb'
 syake e bumb' eye nkonana ka Kondhlo
 u yena, o ke waz' ukubumba. Se be zi
 gata. Se kuti le e ka tshaka i si gwar'
 e ka Pakatewayo, i nsee bay ngoba iyo
 si lupondo so lu shugile (omile). Iai
 yihlab' inxe ba ke. De se kuti le
 e ka Pakatewayo, i si hlal' e ka tshaka

explam

De se kwapuk' upondo, lu se manzi
 a be seti u Pakatway, "Kau! Intungwani
 ya puka kangaka upondo na?" A be seti
 utshaka, ingani lwe na, oti a zilwe zi
 se manzi na?" A buy' ambumbelike,
 ati' a zi yekwe zome. Se be zi yekake.
 Se zi yo kulewa kusasa. Kuti kusasa
 zilwa, kwapukele pezulu o lwika
 Tshaka. De se kuti le eka kwabe ke,
 zapuke zombil' izimpondo. A be se
 tukutela lo okwa kwabe. A be se
 tshel' amadod' akubo, ukuti inkunzi
 yami benzi yate ngi ya yelwisa ne
 ka Tshaka, ~~yapuk~~ e yami yapuk
 izimpondo zombil', eka Tshaka yapuke
 kube lenze. Amadod' e seti ke "Kau!
 Kwenzwa ini na? Intungwana na,
 intwana yo ku tukuswa na, e
 li intanjwan' o beke pezulu na? Uba
 li nga hlup' umntwana w'entona na?"
 Akuzwek' utshaka loko. A be se
 kutshel' u mbikwana. Ati Dabankulu
 Kayik' indawo lapa. Kuhl' unq' hambise
 u ngise kwa mtetwa. Ngi sapindwa

le letu omi
 utshaka
 mabeked hini

Ngomane
 umgenge?
 u mgenge?

oku ngi setsh' e lungeni. "Yebo na?"
 ehe! Kutiwa ngi intungwana, e li
 intanjwan' o beke pezulu, intwana
 yo ku tukuswa, o ku waba amasi,
 injak' u yi tshaz' nga kanda.
 (Wabulawa iloko u Pakatway).
 Dala-ke, way' sem hambisa
 e se musa kwa mtetwa, ku Dingiswayo.
 U gik' eba umntanjwan' u Dingiswayo
 u Dingiswayo u se niki u Mganboli.
 E se hlala no mta ka Dingiswayo
 o inkosana, ku Mganboli, se kutiwa
 a ba bazelwa isigenge sa masi,
 ukamba lwabo lomuti, a badhlala
 kulo bo babili. Da niku' amawasa
 - Kazij' zyi komo' ezimbifi. Da se
 be tanplwa e zimbeng' ezimbifi zo
 me' alaw. Se be niku' amantambazini
 o awabiti o ku ba fayyala ku
 tululw' e li ka Tshak' igula, ba
 li libhle ba li gade be se ku tululwa
 e li nkorana ka Dingiswayo, badhle
 bobili, ba tohiye, kukot' amantambazini
 Se be zo kamba bay' euzi in lwe

83

84

85

44 killbit. Nkhloven says the tribe does the same thing. 44
Thus the Zulu kings were following this practice. Inini
said: "Inkosi ya kusa Zulu kayi zali ^{not supposed to zala, taking present not to zala} - u lukuswana nga
loko. That was the reason for hiding him.
Intonga has no ^{chief} ^{he} ^{is} not appointed one for ^{this} very
reason, because afraid will cause disturbances in his tribe. (100)

[Continued from p. 42]

(Ku kona ~~of~~ lap'otfengweni lap' uTshaka' a fund')
inipi. Kati lapa se be pam' inipi, kutiwe. a ba cibane
ne zita lezo, a ba lwa nazo. Dalwe ke, be se zi
balek' izita. Be se kutiwa ma ba yeke, ba buye,
ngoba se be balekile labaza. Kurasu futi i buye
iye' buyelane, i yo kulwa. Be se kupa e be be
ngafib' izola. uTshaka a be seti. "Wo! Imbi
lempi, uba zi xotsh' abantu gede, be se kutiwa
a si ba yeke, ba buye ba si bulala, inqani
nga si ba xotsha njalo si ba gede." Waze
seti ke "Wo! Kuhl' si nga ba yeke, e se
tohela lo ka Dringiswazo. U se m vumel'
oka Dringiswazo. U seti ub' am vumele, se be
yi qwaza, be yi qinisa, be nga saji yeke.
Ba ya hlele, leep mpi. Ba se benza ukub'
uDringiswazo a be inkosi, a ba hlul' izizwe.
a be seti, uDringiswazo. Hani! Inipi manje.

45
Kan abe ni sa yi xotsha gede, ni yi yoke na?
Kwaze kwa pel' abantu na? Lohu kade iwa
Kahle, inipi ka Ngqayi na? Yoku cibana na?
Ba se beti ke bona, O! Da a si saji lando lego,
e side si yi xotsha, i buy' i buye. Si tanda e
si ba xotsh' njalo, si ze si ba gede, inqab'
i sa bako ngomuso inipi ya labo bantu,
si buye si gal' enye, i be i yona. Okwenza
ukub' u Dringiswazo, a be inkosi, a sa beke, ngoba
abantu baka se be namandhla perzi kwe zizwe
zonke, olewa nazo, ngob' u ya zahlula, ngoba
nati, tina Zulu, sa si ngi luto ku Dringiswazo,
sa si m esaba. Kwaze kwa buy' uTshaka
kuye, and' uba si gye, si benza bantu.
Ngoku fika kwake kiti. Wati a si tate
pat' umkont' u be manye, si yek' ukuba
sinagwala. Wa ye perza ukuba wonk'
umhlaboti wakiti. ube ngomazame
wonke, ba ngabe be sa saba njeng' a ku
gala, o yisembukeli be tshazwa abantu e kanda
beti "Si ya kwa hlula!" Kwa pela ke loko,
ukuba ku fik' uTshaka - kwa pel' ukungqan
gqo zwa ^{So ku juy' umhlaboti} e sed' e ba hlal' selisa nyike
az' a hlel' izizwe, e kwa se kwa ba kwa
Zulu, se ku quny' uTshaka, zonk' izizwe

46 a ^{uTshaka} konga kuya ngob'8 se hamb'e balal' amakozan' abo; 8 dhl' izinkomo. A be se pang' abantu.
Kwa mletwa: ke, se ku foh' u Senzanga kona, u letwa akub' uyo cinga yen' uTshaka, ukuti u kona na? u Senzanga kona yena u vez' izwi lokuti u yo gomisa, kanti wen' icebo lo ku ya u cing' uTshaka. Da hambake na bantu bake, no mdhlunkulu wake. U ya ya afike ka kon' o fengweni. U fenyana uTshaka be se sibayeni, be giza, be job' u mshwili: u Senzanga mboni yena ukuti ^{uTshaka} nang' uTshaka, uti nga bantu nje. oTshaka ke ba ya m buk' u Senzanga ngen' 8 sanzeni. So kwen dhlunkulu izitebe amacans' sbuma, na we nduli, a ya a fiki elawini la u S. e ya ungena kona. Wa ye se ngena ke So ku butano umdhlunkulu ke wa kwa mletwa, o lala kuya, wo ku gomisa. Se be puma k' oTshak' 8 sibayeni. Se be ya, ubon' abantu nje, na bantu futi be nga mazi. Wa ye se m bon' u mdhli; se be kuluma no mbikwana. 8 ^{uTshaka} seti u Dingwayo, u se biz' uTshaka no mntanake, sti wozani lapa. Se be ya ke. Seti ke ni vek' 8 kuseeni ni ye Mrodi, 8 cibini, ni yo geza. U se ba nek' umuti. U seti nanka ke umuti, ni ya.

47 ^{uTshaka} ugera ni geze, ni geene ngawo. Ni gezele endhleleni. ~~le uyo buya~~ u Senzanga kona o ya u hambakuyo 8 ya ugera. ~~Abu~~ Ni geze gede, ni buya ni yo kudhla. De se neza ke lapa kimi, yen' 8 se hambil' e ya ugera. Dalake, ~~u~~ ukuba ba geze, ba kwenze konk' okutshewo uye, ba se be buya beza ku y' u Dingwayo, wa ye se tuma. ke abantu ba kwabake, e se ya u kipa labaza aba bili a ba lind' ilawu, deli eli del' u Senz. Da se beti bona. 8 si lind' ilawu; ba se beti laba. Haa! si lindwa ini na? Niti ni bizwa inkosi be se nito ni lind' ilawu na? si lindwa ini ini? Sabatlani. Si kona 8 tura, e si za ku li lenda. Da se be hambake, se be ya kona lapa be bezele kona ngapaya kwo muzi. So ku hambak' u Ding. no Tshaka, be ya u ngena kon' elawini. 8 se tab' isitebe 8 be se hlez' ^{u Senzanga kona} uTshaka, u se m 8 lapa nge miti, 8 m gezeisa kuso. 8 se geob' miti, 8 hlikihlela kuso, amafut' 8 zinjama zoni' 8 zi li kuni, kona e za u ti la 8 fika, e se m bona, a pek' intamo, be se ham' uTshaka, u Senz; a be se foba, a pum' intamo, angab' 8 sambeka, a

(9)

← continued from
above - all →

57/9/1-6 (AA)

20.9.19

Ukhlova ka Tsimani, continues story:
Ukhazwa ka Tshaka neku-buyiswa kwake kwang Zulu.

U se m bonganga zi bongozake ethi
uNodume hlezika menzi
uKunbe leq'amseny' amlemba.

Ngo ka ngena kwake isitunzi se lihlala
beza kwak'uyise uSenz. U se tshaywa
uvalo uSenz. U se phek' intamo kona
lapo. Iset' intamo gaxe! U se dors' amehlo
enzg nje! U set' ukub' am bone ukuli
wa phekile u seti Hau! Inkosi inga yi
~~u~~ bon' inkomo enge yakubo na? Uti-ke
uSenz: Hau! Ngingayi bona? Uti-ke U
bonani na? Uti-ke Ngi bona nans' inkomo.
Uti: Uyi bone' ukuti i yapi na? Uti-ke
Iya kiti. Uti Iya kimi na? U ya vuma
uthi Iyami. Uti Daga m bingela-ke
uSenz. abantwana-ke. U ya vuma-ke
uset' uTshaka "Daba! Ngip' umkonto" Se
beqi tata-ke umkonto U seti Dork' owu
tandayo. U se wu rotha-ke uTshaka
u seti-ke uSenz: Hau! Oka Nomkwayimba
lowo! ¹⁸⁶ U se Protsh' omunye-ke U seti-ke
"Yobo-ke lowo. U tate" Se zi pumak' eginse.

se zi ya ugiy' esibayeni. Naw' umkonto o
 wuphiweyo uyise, u se ya ugiya ngawo. U
 se sal' u Ding. u seti. A si dhlala le ne nkosi.
 Se be vuma. Sekuti ukuba a vume u se pumi
 u Ding. elawini. U seti ke u mudhli, wea! Njengoba
 nans' inkosi i si dunguzela, i ngaye i sa dhlala
 kanjani? Hambani niyi tshel' inkosi ukuti
 njengoba e bu hlungu, u se nga dhlala nami.
 Se be hambake ke ya ku m tshela u Ding. U
 se fik' e vuma, eto. Kuhl' ke ngoba e etsho
 njal' u mudhli. Se be puma ke be ya u dhlala
 ezansi kwo muzi. Se be dhlala ke bo babili,
 Se ke p emkunjini ka Zulu no Ding. Se be
 dhlala bo bali pakati kwayo, se be vanulile.
 u mudhli u fake isigova sake, amatshob'
 ezimpungutsho, inkosi, (u Ding) u se fake usiba
 lewendwa. Se se luwa, le ~~ke~~ gxeumo beka
 pan si, ^{le ya to hlikisa} Se zil' izinduna zake zi ya le
 tata. Waye kuza, za le yeka. wa u se
 won akala njal' u mudhli, u se citoka.
 Sekuti uba ba hlakazke ke, se beti a ba
 be yo buka, wa hlelw' u Dingiswayo, wa hlelw' ^{yeatelo}

u mudhli! E seti ke uba bambulu (u mudhli)
 se bey' ekaya, u seyo vablis' enkosini, e vablis'
 ela u senz. U seti u Ding. Ngi ya bongu, lok'
 inkosi ngi ke ngayi bona? Se be hambake. u seti
 u Ding. ke mudhli, a ku wenz' kahle uku-
 lamba. ~~U se ma ke.~~ U se puma ke u senz
 kany' naban ne bandhla lake a hambana nalo.
 u seti ke ku mudhli. "Se ke lungile pela.
 Nans' indodana yako, se ngi ya yi buyisa!
 U seti ke u mudhli: "Yebo, inkosi, kuhl' lok'
 Inkosi a i k' iyeke namuhla." U seti ke
 yena # u Ding, ngi za u yekelani na?
 Uti wo! Ngi sab' u Zulu. U Zulu u za
 u kwenzani na? Ke bez' u Ding. Uti ke
 "Hau! Inkosi, u Zulu u za u ngi bulala" U
 ke bulaleni na? A be seti. U se set' u Zulu
 "Hau! U za u pata ^{umindana} uphuku ebili. U pata
 u senz, u pat' u tshakana?" U se ya
 tula ke u Dingis. U se hambake u mudhli.
 Uti ab' a hambake u se biz' u tshaka
 u Dingiswayo. U se biz' u ngombodhi u
 se biz' u Dubikwana, namadod' okwaka ke
 amakulu. U seti. Ni ya lezwa bel'

4
igama la le ndoda na? "Dati si' ya liza
ke mtetawa". Uti ke "Haa! Yenza ngani ubani
iya & ya m bumbayo, a z'a fike lapa nje
kinri kanguye o wa m enzayo na, ub'az'
abz kona. Namuhla u se ngab'ukum
buyisa na? Ku bona kel'ukuti u se 'bek'
uNomkwezimba. M ham biseni ke, madoda
ngiti ma kambe kona namhlangeni, Oa
ni m landisele yen' uyise." Wo! bala ke
le ku vum' amadoda la, ukuti yebo!
ma kambe. U seti ke ^{ku} Tshaka, njengokuba
u ya yi bona le ndoda, o fik' u yi bulale.
Ka u kuba nkosi u ngi yika. U yi bonile
nawe, ngiti ngi dhlala nayo, kuw' u siba
lwami. U mananga u ngayi bulali, ka
pu kuba akosi." U ya fik' ba landela ke
Ba ya ya lala ku lowo mezi, kus' & fika
kusasa yena. A dhlalele njalo, ke kambe
kanjalo, ba ze ba fik' ezwakaya Ngo
ku fika kwabo, u se ya kona kuwa Nodunga,
ku bo ka Mudhli no Senzengakona (lona
wa kuwa Nodunga izizinda). U se fik' & bulal'
u Mudhli kona. U se dhlala ke eya ke

5
bulal' u Nomkwezimba. U se dhlala futi e ya
u bulal' u Nomfikela ka Jamna, wo ku zalwa.
U se fika kon' & kaya ke, se se lumela ku
Senz' ukuti u se bulal' u Mudhli no Nomkwe
myimba no nomafikela. U se buza ke u Senz
ukuti ba bulewe uba na? Se beti tt Ba
bulewe u sitshaka ka si tshazike (88) U se
tshaywa uvalo u Senz. Se be fika, kon'
& sa f' bikelwa, ku fika yen' u Tshaka
nge rubo la kuwa mtetawa, beti:
Zi no mland' omkulu bezonkole,
ukuti guleka kwake ke u Senz: rndhlini,
ke sa m bonga pandhle, amadod' a kuwa
mtetawa a fika nawo, omz' oboli.
Kwa se ku fik' isigijimi, & si zo biki'
u Dingisiwayo ukuti u file; ku bikelwa
yen' u Tshaka. Wat' u bulewe ini na?
"U bulewe u Ndwandwe (a ba kuwa Nxumeli)
"U be yo kuwenzani na?" "U sale wa
puni riva kwabo, waya kuwa Ndwandwe
ku zwide (89) wa fike wa m bulala. Ba m neptelis,
izinkabi. wa betelwa nge zikontkwan'
ezandleni, na sezinyaweni; wo bekiswa

6
 izizim perzulu. Kwa se ku qutsho' izinkabi,
 zi m nyatel' r be kile, zi m nyatel' esifubeni
 na se siswini. Wa-fa' kwa yz se zwa ke
 a Tshaka ukuti uyise u se m bulol' u Zwide
 use pak' impike, i siya kona kwa Nxumalo
 & Mlandwaneni (igama lo mazi ka Zwide).
 Se fanyanisa ku Zwide unps' isi butene, i si
 be k' aba kwa Mtetwa. I silwa-ke, i si-
 lwa ka kelee, Da ngayi be tshi. Ku ze
 ku bonakale ukut' uNxumalo u ya lwa,
 wZulu kodwa mningi. uNxumalo u se
 tele lwa ngabanye a ba be bulawa kwa
 Mtetwa. I si z' i pum' i balek' uinkosi
 u Zwide, abe amabuto' ake & maningzi.
 Iz' izizwe se zi klangana kuzo. Ba
 yileve ka kelee e ya kwa Zulu, Daya
 hlabana ^{na}bo, ka be sabi.

15.12.20
 Mangate ka Godide, sibongo, Ntuli. -
 Sikiti! ngi fung' u sikiti, kutsi' amadod' akuzala.
 I have heard them so far going, but I do not know origin of
 the name. ^{from the agent, Tshaka} where love is ^{let the fostering of} mutual attraction
 continues to be fostered &
 igugu li ya donsiswana. Ukutandana, ukub' omuny'
 etand' omunye, omuny' angaf' uwalo ngo munye na? Uku-
 tandana kwabo kuya fana, boba bili. Igugu li ya donsi-
 swana. Da fana ne ntomb' i tand' isoka, nala' isoka li
 m tanda. Aha munta onga m tanda, ^{umuntu} nganhlanye,
 njeng' entombi i tand' isoka lona li ngazi tandi. Igugu
 ihlulis' indawo ngo kumtanda, ukutandana kwabo
 ku nga lingani. Entomb' enye ingabe kona ku njalo,
 uma i tand' umuntu. [ie even when love is not returned, a girl will
 persist in loving the object of her affection.]
 Igugu loke ^{is the love} tandana kwabo a li nganeki.
 It is the love, which has sprung up between the girl and
 her lover that is spoken figuratively of as igugu.
 ukudonisisana: ukuba isoka li hambeli ye kuzo;
 nazo, naa izisukhe zi nga kabi ngakii, isi sukha & isiga
 kulo (isoka). Nazo, i ya ~~but~~ buya, so ku suk' isoka fali
 seli ya kuzo.
 Igugu li ya donsiswana = It is incumbent on every pair of lovers
 to act reciprocally towards one another. ^{mutual fostering of}
 where there is love, there let there be ^{where love is, there} mutual
 attraction, continue constantly ^{to be fostered} & on a
 1, be up boys.